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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
SEFHH

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (the “Board”)
of Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | have the
pleasure to report on the financial results, operations and other
aspects of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The audit report is presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a loss
for the year of HK$26,921,000 (2013: profit of HK$74,507,000), the
basic and diluted loss per share were HK0.93 cents per share (2013:
basic and diluted earnings of HK6.05 cents per share and HK6.05
cents per share respectively).

As at 31 December 2014, the consolidated net assets of the Group
were HK$1,512,308,000 (31 December 2013: net assets of
HK$991,927,000).

DIVIDEND
No dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil) is
recommended by the Board.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and through its
subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the business of money
lending and provision of credit, securities investments, provision of
corporate secretarial and consultancy services and forestry
business.

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business

Since obtaining the Money Lenders License under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong Kong) in 2011,
Joy Wealth Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has provided a wide variety of loans with an accumulated
amount of approximately HK$1,156 million. Interest rates ranged
from 10%-48% per annum during the current year. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the interest income was HK$63,327,000
(2013: HK$19,955,000), and there was no impairment loss (2013: Nil)
whereas there was a reversal of impairment loss of HK$8,076,000 on
the loan and interest receivables (2013: HK$5,000,000). Details on
the loan and interest receivables were set out in Note 24.
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Securities Investments Business

As at 31 December 2013, the Company through Best Harvest Asia
Limited (“Best Harvest”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, held 6,275,000 shares of Simsen International
Corporation Limited (a company whose shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
Stock Code: 993) (“Simsen”), representing approximately 9.87% of
the then issued share capital of Simsen. Details have been
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 15 April
2013 and 22 July 2013 respectively.

On 9 April 2014, Simsen issued and allotted bonus shares to its
qualifying shareholders on the basis of 9 bonus shares for every 1
existing share held. Thereafter and as at 31 December 2014, the
Group's interest in Simsen through Best Harvest increased to
62,750,000 shares.

On 2 September 2014, Best Harvest received a HK$0.15 special
dividend on each ordinary share of Simsen held, the Group thus
recorded an other income of approximately HK$9,413,000 during
the current year.

The Group is holding 90 redeemable convertible preference shares
of a company with money lenders license under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
"Preference Shares”) in the aggregate amount of HK$90,000,000,
which brought a dividend income of approximately HK$9,984,000
during the current year.

In sum, during the current year, the investment in the shares of
Simsen and the Preference Shares brought about other income of
approximately HK$19,397,000 (2013: HK$9,076,000) and the
investment in listed securities led to a net fair value gain being
recognised as a comprehensive income in an amount of
approximately HK$531,502,000 (2013: HK$28,462,000).

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

The Group has been conducting the provision of corporate
secretarial and consultancy services business mainly through Pacific
Vision Advisory Services Limited (“Pacific Vision”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Group has recruited a team of
professionals in the areas of accounting, finance, legal and
corporate secretary and has built up a client portfolio with a
number of listed companies.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
SEFHH

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a segment revenue of
approximately HK$1,838,000 and a segment loss of approximately
HK$4,080,000 had been recorded (31 December 2013: segment
revenue approximately HK$7,657,000 and segment profit of
approximately HK$245,000 respectively).

Forestry Business

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the acquisition (the
"Acquisition”) of 30% of the entire issued share capital of Profit
Grand Enterprises Limited ("Profit Grand”), which through its
subsidiary has the logging rights within a forest sized approximately
65,800 hectares in PNG. The total consideration for the Acquisition
of HK$310,000,000. Details of the Acquisition have been disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 29 February 2012. Upon the
completion of the Acquisition, a goodwill amounted to
approximately HK$306,019,000 (the “Goodwill”) was recorded. As
at 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount of the Goodwill
which was determined with reference to the valuation report issued
by the independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, was
approximately HK$239,000,000. Hence, an impairment loss on the
Goodwill in an amount of approximately HK$67,019,000 was
recognised during the current year.

As a condition of the Acquisition, the Group, respective vendors
and the guarantor entered into an option deed pursuant to which
the vendors have granted to the Group an option to purchase the
option shares representing 70% of the entire issued share capital of
Profit Grand (the “Option”) and the Option may be exercised at
the sole discretion of the Group according to the terms and
conditions therein at any time during the period commencing the
13th month after the date of completion and expiring the 12th
month thereafter, which is 11 May 2014 (or such later date as may
be agreed by both the Group and the vendors). As the parties
thereto have not extended the option period, such period lapsed
and the Option has expired on 11 May 2014 accordingly. Details
have been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
12 May 2014.
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The Group was informed by the vendors, their representatives and
the landowners that they are following up with the Department of
Environment and Conservation and other government authorities in
the PNG regarding the outstanding necessary approvals, licenses,
registrations, confirmations and/or permits as may be required to
conduct forestry related business and to enjoy logging concession
right under the laws and regulations in the PNG (the “Official
Approvals”) continuously. As at 31 December 2014 and the date of
this report, there was no material progress in these regards that
may unveil the uncertainty in relation to the grant of the Official
Approvals within the time frame as previously expected. Against
such circumstances, a more conservative approach in valuing the
Goodwill for reflecting such possible risks and uncertainties is
adopted (i.e. the discount rate is higher for addressing the
underlying uncertainty and the inflow of revenue is deferred for
addressing the delay, ceterus paribus). Accordingly, the recoverable
amount of the Goodwill is declined and thus the impairment loss is
triggered. Whilst the assumptions in relation to the Goodwill as
considered and disclosed since in the circular of the Company
dated 29 February 2012 and up to the annual report 2013 of the
Company dated 25 March 2014 are reasonable, they are inherently
subject to economic and competitive uncertainties and
contingencies that are beyond the control of the Company and the
parties thereto. Despite of the slow progress for the Official
Approvals, as previously advised by the PNG legal adviser, the
Environment Permit could be granted after the Approval In
Principle has been issued under the Law of the PNG in the absence
of any irregularities and on the assumption that the application for
the Clearance Authority are in order and in the absence of any
unforeseen circumstances. There is no conclusive evidence that
comes to the attention of the Company that there is material legal
impediment to obtain the Clearance Authority as at the date of this
report. The Group shall continue to follow up with the vendors, the
relevant government authorities and professionals regarding the
Official Approvals, the development of the forestry business and its
valuation and shall comply with all relevant requirements, and
where necessary, make further announcement(s) in accordance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"). More details have
been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 12
May 2014 and 6 August 2014 respectively.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
SEFHH

OUTLOOK

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business

Money lending and provision of credit business will continue to be
the major business segment of the Group and contribute stable
interest income to the Group. The Group will further develop this
business segment, diversify the customer portfolio, seek
opportunity to cooperate with its business partners and is actively
looking for new business opportunities in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") to extend the money lending platform of the
Group.

Securities Investments Business

As part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluating the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company. Subject to the results of such reviews, the
Company may make suitable investment decisions according to the
then circumstance and information available which may involve the
disposal of the whole or part of its existing investment portfolio
and/or the change of the components and/or the asset allocation
of its investment portfolio and/or broadening and diversifying its
investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or optimising the
expected return and minimising the risks.

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

Pacific Vision will continue identifying listed and corporate clients
and delivering on-going corporate secretarial and consultancy
services in different aspects of due diligence, financial analysis, and
valuation analysis to listed companies in Hong Kong.

Forestry Business

The Group shall continue to follow up with the vendors, the
relevant government authorities and professionals regarding the
Official Approvals, the development of the forestry business and its
valuation and shall comply with all relevant requirements, and
where necessary, make further announcement(s) in accordance with
the Listing Rules and SFO.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$473,863,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$420,107,000); bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$67,734,000 (31 December 2013: HK$248,757,000); and no
borrowing (31 December 2013: unguaranteed and unsecured
borrowings denominated in HK$ with fixed interest rate of
approximately HK$65,000,000). The Group did not enter into
financial instruments for hedging purpose. A tax provision in an
amount of approximately HK$6,899,000 was made for the current
year (2013: Nil). Details of taxation are set out in the Note 12.

Capital Structure

There was no change to the authorised and issued share capital of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014. As at 31
December 2014, the total number of the issued ordinary shares with
the par value of HK$0.001 each was 2,782,102,650 (31 December
2013:2,782,102,650).

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals

There was no significant investment, acquisition and disposals that
should be notified to the shareholders of the Company (the
"Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
performance and prospect of the significant investments of the
Group for the current year under review were discussed under the
sections of “Securities Investments Business” above.

Segment Information
Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in Note 9.

Employees

As at 31 December 2014, 18 staff members have been employed.
In-house training programs were provided for the staff to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the staff.

The Group will review the employee remuneration from time to
time based on their performance, experiences and industry practice
and salary increment is normally approved annually or by special
adjustment depending on length of services and performance
when warranted. In addition to salaries, the Group provides
employee benefits including medical and mandatory provident
funds. Share options and bonuses are also available to employees
of the Group at the discretion of Directors and depending on the
financial performance of the Group and the performance of the
employees.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
SEFHH

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2013: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

As at the date of this report, the Company is holding 90
redeemable convertible Preference Shares in the aggregate
amount of HK$90,000,000. The Company will from time to time
review the business and financial performance of such investment.

It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways to
improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations into
new and more profitable businesses, in particular new business
opportunities in the PRC to extend its money lending platform, and
to broaden the sources of revenue within acceptable risk level.
Hence, the Company does not rule out the possibility of investing
in or changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also, as
part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the performance
of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates the investment
potentials of other investment opportunities available to the
Company from time to time. Subject to the results of such reviews,
the Company may make suitable investment decisions according to
the then circumstance and information available which may involve
the disposal of the whole or part of its existing investment portfolio
and/or change of the asset allocation of its investment portfolio
and/or expanding its investment portfolio with a view of realising
and/or optimising the expected return and minimising the risks.
Meanwhile, the Company does not preclude the possibility that the
Company may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to
satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business development
of the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise, as the Company has
from time to time been approached by investors for potential
investment projects.

As at the date of this report, the Company had not entered into any
agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or negotiation
that should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the SFO.

Treasure Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in relation
to the Group's investments in securities of other listed companies
on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is to enable the
Group to control and govern the possible future securities
investments (if any, which may or may not occur).
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Working Capital and Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratios at the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
were as follows:

tEE (HfiE28)
B SRITRESR RIS

Borrowings (Note 28)
Less: bank balances and cash

Net debt EIRFHE
Total equity iR
Total capital BENBEE

Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

There were no material transaction and movement for financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group that are denominated in
foreign currency during the current year. Thus, the Group did not
expose to foreign currency exchange rate risk during the current
year. The Group has not implemented any foreign currency
hedging policy at the moment. However, continuous monitoring on
the foreign exchange exposure is carried out and the management
will consider hedging the foreign exchange exposure if it has
material impact on the Group.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material capital
commitment (31 December 2013: Nil).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2013: Nil).

EEABLX(BRFRHENRE)

LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EERA

EEEERAEARILE
AEER=F-MER=F-ZFT=AZ+—
A2 AEBELENT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=B=+—8H
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH T FH&7T
= 65,000
(67,734) (248,757)
(67,734) (183,757)
1,512,308 991,927
1,444,574 808,170
(4.7%) (22.7%)

SHE R

RAFE - AEBEAIINEINEZEREER SR
BEYEBARZRES - Hit - REERAF
& b 4B S SN B 2R e\ g o AN 5% (B3R B I S E s
EAIMES R - A BEE S HEERN
PEE G WRARE R B ERFEREEE I
FEE 2

o

BARE
R-Z—ME+-_A=+—0 KEETEEK
EAFE(ZCE—=F+-_A=1+—H8 :#)-

HABE

R-ZZE-—WF+-_A=1+—8 AEEYTESK
FRBE(CT—=F+-A=1T—H:8|)-

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELkENEEEGE

EXECUTIVES DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Chuan Fu (“"Mr. Huang”), aged 41, is the Chairman of
the Board and a member of Remuneration Committee, joined the
Group since 13 April 2010. He is also the director of thirteen
subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than 10 years of working
experience. Mr. Huang acquaints with money lending and provision
of credit business and is experienced in securities investment
business.

Mr. Liang Jian Hua (“"Mr. Liang”), aged 45, joined the Group since
29 April 2010. He is also a director of one subsidiary of the
Company. He has over 20 years of working experience in trading ,
property investment, securities investment and money lending
business. Currently, Mr. Liang is the vice president of Zhejiang
Shunfeng Steel Co., Ltd. and was a non-executive director of China
Environmental Energy Investment Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 986) during the period from 29
January 2013 to 20 January 2014.

Ms. Jia Hui ("Ms. Jia"), aged 47, joined the Group since 13 April
2010. She has more than 20 years of working experience in area of
merchandising and project management. Since 2003, Ms. Jia has
been appointed as the business development manager of Beijing
International Trade Corporation.

Mr. Jiang Yi Ren (“"Mr. Jiang”), aged 48, joined the Group since 29
April 2010. He has more than 20 years of working experience in
area of manufacturing and property investment. Currently, Mr.
Jiang is the vice president of Wenling City Zhong Fa Precision Steel
Parts Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (“Mr. Wong"), aged 42, joined the Group
since 22 April 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University
with an honors degree in accounting in 1995. He is an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 10 years' experience in accounting, auditing and consulting.
Since November 2005, he has been the managing director of B&C
Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited. Moreover, he was a
financial controller of General Nice Group and its associate Abterra
Limited, which is a listed company in Singapore until April 2011. Mr.
Wong was an independent non-executive director of China
Household Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code:
692), Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 3823) until 30 June 2011
and 7 January 2011 respectively. He was a non-executive director of
King Stone Energy Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 663) until 12 March 2013. Mr. Wong was
also an executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as TLT Lottotainment Group Limited) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 8022) until 31
December 2013.

Mr. Zheng Zhen (“Mr. Zheng"), aged 38, joined the Group since 10
May 2013, is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
graduated from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics,
majoring in Accounting. Mr. Zheng possesses of over 10 years
experiences in accounting and finance in various industries.
Currently, he is the financial controller of Zuoquan Xinrui Metallurgy
& Mine Co. Limited which is indirectly owned as to 22.8% by
Abterra Limited, a listed company in Singapore.

Mr. To Langa Samuelson (“Mr. To"), aged 30, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 4 March 2015. Mr. To is a solicitor
practicing in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong. He obtained his Bachelor Degree in Laws and the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. To has extensive experience in law in Hong Kong,
particularly in civil and insurance-related matters.

Mr. Lau Yiu Tung ("Mr. Lau”), aged 43, joined the Group since 18
November 2014 and was also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University,
majoring in Business Administration. Mr. Lau has over 18 years'
experiences in sales and marketing in medical and pharmaceutical
industries. Mr. Lau has resigned as an independent non-executive
director and all positions in the Group on 27 February 2015.

Saved as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between
each of the directors of the Company and senior management as
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AR E

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS BEX
The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of AT AREBER Y EBEE 2 RKREXRIGES XA
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. BE o

For the year ended 31 December
Et-A=t—-BLFE

2014 2012 2011 2010

—E-ImF —E—F 22— ZZ-IZF

HK$'000 HK$’OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHT FHT FAT T

(Restated) (Restated)

(&251)) (&%)

Revenue e 65,165 29,693 34,720 53,369 4,385

(Loss) profit attributable to the N2 G1EH AL

owners of the Company (E8) &7 (26,008) 75,597 62,283 (134,081) 75,914

Dividends fi% 8. - - - - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BRI R ER

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated statement AT A7 BN T5I1HE B B 2 KB ZEE B
of financial position of the Group as at the respective dates as  ARAMEME -
hereunder stated.

As at 31 December

Rt+=—A=+—H
2014 2012 2011 2010
—E—mF = —T——F —T——F —IT-IZF
HK$'000 H K$ (00(0] HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHETT FHET FHET
(Restated)
(E51)
Property, plant and equipment #@% W= N aR 527 1,394 2,575 173 35
Goodwill = 239,000 306,019 306,019 - -
Intangible asset EVEE 1,194 - - - -
Deposit for acquisition of SRR RS
logging concession 221 242 269 - -
Available-for-sale financial AR ESREE
assets 797,503 264,165 95,922 25,200 -
Investment deposits ®RE & - - - 20,000 -
Convertible instruments AR T B (3BE AR
designated as financial NHERBER
assets at fair value through  JIBE 2 & RIEE)
profit or loss - - 104,712 - -
Loan and interest receivables  [EUE 7k K& 518 391,584 222,430 127,646 273,221 145,752
Other current assets Hime & E 91,923 265,224 68,315 102,989 82,281
Current liabilities mEAE (9,644) (67,547) (15,371) (11,472) (136,533)
Representing: 15
Share capital [ 2,782 2,782 178,054 247,585 1,927
Reserves G 1,509,384 988,984 511,849 162,526 85,221
Non-controlling interests JEFERR RS 142 161 184 - 4,387
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) % B 4E25 (E54t) 1,512,308 991,927 690,087 410,111 91,535
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “"Board”) is
committed to uphold a high standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics in the belief that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of Shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements (both locally and internationally), and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has complied
with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange except for the deviations as
explained below. The principles as set out in the Code Provisions
have been applied in the Company’s corporate governance
structure.

DEVIATION FROM CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. One independent non-executive Director who was
appointed in previous years is not appointed for a specific term but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.
As such, it is considered that such provisions are sufficient to meet
the underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG
Code. Also, the Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on
Directors’ service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be
committed to representing the long-term interests of the
Shareholders.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that all
independent non-executive directors and non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to personal
commitments, Mr. Wong Sze Kai, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company who resigned on 12 November 2014, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 5 June 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REBRE

THE BOARD

The Board is in charge with overseeing the business and affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) that aims at
enhancing the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Director,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. Roles of the Board
include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies and policies,
monitoring financial and operating performance and setting
appropriate risk management policies.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how the management
serves the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders. To
achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate governance
principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is independent and
fully informed on the key strategic issues facing the Company. As at
the date of this report, the Board comprises of four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. In
respect of CG Code D.1.4, subsequent to 31 March 2012, formal
letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were subsequently executed by all
Directors.

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Board of Directors

Exg

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Chuan Fu (Chairman) &{&E@%4 (F/E)

Mr. Liang Jian Hua RRESLSE

Ms. Jia Hui EEr+

Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B

Independent Non-executive  BYFEHITES
Directors

Mr. Wong Chun Hung S E

Mr. Zheng Zhen BiAg 5 A4

Mr. To Langa Samuelson MBI A&
(appointed on 4 March 2015) (RZZE—RF=AMNBHEZT)

Mr. Lau Yiu Tung ZIBR LA

(ceased on 27 February 2015)
An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at

the Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise that complies with Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors are
set out in pages 12 to 13 of this report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules require that the Board
and the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
should include at least three independent non-executive directors
and members respectively. Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires
the Board to have at least one-third in number of its members
comprising independent non-executive directors.

The total number of independent non-executive Directors and
members of the Audit Committee fell below the minimum
requirement as set under the Listing Rules after the resignation of
former independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Sze Kai
and Mr. Lau Yiu Tung on 12 November 2014 and 27 February 2015
respectively. Upon the appointment of Mr. Lau Yiu Tung on 18
November 2014 and Mr. To Langa Samuelson on 4 March 2015
respectively as independent non-executive Directors and members
of Audit Committee, there are three independent non-executive
Directors and three Audit Committee members respectively, and
the Company has then fully complied with the Listing Rules in this
regard.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors, or
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation. They
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders of the
Company. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REBRE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarized below.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) reviews and assesses the composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
Directors. The Nomination Committee also oversees the conduct
of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in
order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents,
skills, experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limit to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service etc.

DIRECTORS' INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of the legal action against the Directors.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the Company are
delegated to the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2014 and the Directors’ respective
attendance record are summarised as follows:

TEERRE

BE_T-NF+-_A=+—HLEFERETZ
EXeeR MRRRERBASEFT ZHERE
Bt

Number of board
meetings attended
(21 board meetings

Number of general
meetings attended

(1 in total) in total)
HERR HEEEEEE
KERY RE(EH21R
(B#£1K%) )
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman "BERLEE TE 11 14/21
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua PrEEE 0N 21121
Ms. JIA Hui EELT on 12/21
Mr. JIANG Yi Ren B-fkE 0/1 2121
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. WONG Chun Hung BEELE 11 20/21
Mr. ZHENG Zhen iy 11 21/21
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson HEAME &
(appointed on 4 March 2015) (RZZ—RF=-AMAEZHA) N/ATER N/ATER
Mr. LAU Yiu Tung AREEE
(ceased on 27 February 2015) (NZE-—RF_A-T+HHEM N/ATiEH 3/6
Mr. WONG Sze Kai BRELE
(ceased on 12 November 2014) (R=—Z—WNE+—B+-HABF) 0N 6/13

Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and Directors are given adequate notice to attend such regular
Board meetings or other Board meetings. Directors are also
provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in such
form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings, other Board
meetings or other committees meetings are recorded in sufficient
details.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.
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During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limit to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and reference.
During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All Directors (being Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, Mr. Liang Jian
Hua, Mr. Jiang Yi Ren, Ms. Jia Hui, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr.
Wong Sze Kai, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. Lau Yiu Tung) received
regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary on the
Group's business, operations and corporate governance matters,
studied publications, books and other reading materials or
attended seminars or workshops delivered by professionals, which
are relevant to their duties and responsibilities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the terms as contained in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) as the Company’s code of
conduct for securities transactions and dealings (“Model Code”).
All Directors of the Company, upon specific enquiry, have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Huang Chuan Fu serves as
the Chairman of the Company but the Company does not have any
offices with title of “Chief Executive Officer”. The executive
Directors undertake the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business, whereas the Chairman is responsible for management of
the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Under the existing
arrangement, the Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured and such arrangement is for the
benefits of the Group. However, the Board will also review regularly
the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive Officer if a
suitable person is identified.

Paciy c Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

FR ERAEEXBEREERNERES TR
HEHER  YREREEMBIENER 81
BrARRBBEEERTR  AREERERA
REE URABASREZEXBHERNEE
RERY UHREHARRSE - FR 2EE
FEHEFEEXLR UWBERBRESZA
B 2REFHEERLLE  REERE
B—Eh4 BExL SEELELE EEREL
£ BEAEEMIBRECCDENEARWER
HERAREEY LERCEERFEZEN
REHMEHN UEMRARERERBERRZ
T ERFEGHEMHAHEEBH TSR
HERATRBZHERIL -

ESETRSREZBFEESTAH

ARBCRA ETRAM ST EMETAESE
TRZFXHHRETAIFMEGT - (FRARQR®
TRZXSGREREZBTTA(RETH]) - &
AEEERFHARSHAR  REHEER K
ERBE-T—NF+-A=+—HLEFE—H
BTIRAEST R -

EFERITHAR

TAHMEX B A2 EHETE  EERITREHZ ARG
EELED KT EHR— ARM - EEELEE
EARRBIZERE  WEARRE B B EEABE A
[TTHREE ] 2B - ITEZREARRERZ
AEERIE MEFREBEESS 2 ERIIE
MAEEZREERE - RERELH BG4
Z ERREIERBRSI OIS BHEYR
BEFNEAER - A EFS B EHRTE
He MK YRAE A EERPIBERITTHRE
ﬁ °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. One
independent non-executive Director whom was appointed in
previous years is not appointed for a specific term but is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such,
it is considered that such provisions are sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG Code.
Also, the Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on
Directors’ service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be
committed to representing the long-term interests of the
Shareholders.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was duly constituted on 29 June 2005 and as at the
date of this Report, it comprises of an executive Director, Mr.
Huang Chuan Fu and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa
Samuelson. Mr. Wong Sze Kai and Mr. Lau Yiu Tung resigned as
independent non-executive Directors and ceased to be members
of this committee on 12 November 2014 and 27 February 2015
respectively.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

() to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;
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to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

() to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the Remuneration Committee
members’ respective attendance records are summarised as
follows:

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman =RMEE  FE

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu EEELE
Mr. ZHENG Zhen BB 5T A&
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson MEAINSEAE

(appointed on 4 March 2015)
Mr. LAU Yiu Tung (appointed on
18 November 2014 and ceased
to be member on 27 February 2015)
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (ceased to be member
on 12 November 2014)

The remuneration payable to Directors is determined by reference
to their experiences and duties with the Company and the
estimated time spent by them on the Company’s matters. During
the current year, meeting was held to review the performance and
remuneration of Directors and make recommendation to the Board
for the new Director and resigned Director. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HEEFERE
(BH2AFHZERER)
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was duly constituted on 13 February 2012 and as at
the date of this Report, it comprises of three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen and
Mr. To Langa Samuelson. Mr. Wong Sze Kai and Mr. Lau Yiu Tung
resigned as independent non-executive Directors and ceased to be
members of this committee on 12 November 2014 and 27 February
2015 respectively.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company'’s
corporate strategy;

(b) to consider the skills mix needed in respect of Directors and
make recommendations to the Board;

() to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
Directors for the Board's approval. Academic and professional
qualifications, business experience, expertise and knowledge
as well as other requirements under the Listing Rules will be
assessed to determine if the nomination is suitable;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(e) to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive;

(9) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company’s constitution or imposed by
legislation.
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In 2012, prior to the setting up of the Nomination Committee, the
Board as a whole is responsible for the said duties of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year, meetings were held by the Nomination Committee
to, among other things, review the structure, size and composition
of the board, make recommendation for appointment of Director,
assess the independence of each of the independent non-
executive Directors and formulate the board diversity policy and
recommend to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

R-ZE——%F RIURKEZES
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BAEESRE  AERAK  LEZTESFHL
HEER  HESFIINTETZB LSO N

PRIEFEZTLEBE  YAEFSRLHEER
RUFHE REZEGCRIEFE SR
B URERENG  URR/AEEERMBUKE
EREEHE - TRIIRZEBKBERFEAHE
SEACER

Number of

meeting attended

(2 nomination
committee meetings

in total)
HESERE
(EH2XREBEZEEEER)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman EEERE - T 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Zhen L E 2/2
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson HEAMSEE
(appointed on 4 March 2015) (RZZE—RF=AMNAEEZFE) N/A N3
Mr. LAU Yiu Tung (appointed BB SEE (RS —F
on 18 November 2014 and ceased to be +—A+tN\BEZERN=-_ZE—AF
member on 27 February 2015) ZAZTERKILEEEKE) N/A 73
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (ceased to be member FEIELERZZ—HF
on 12 November 2014) +—A+ZHBRIEEARKE) 1/
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION BB £
The Group engaged ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited to ASRBEZEGZE (HE) S EHMERQAIE

perform audit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and other
non-audit services for agreed-upon procedures on interim results
for the period ended 30 June 2014 at a fee of approximately
HK$940,000 and of HK$200,000 respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

On 18 November 2014, Mr. Lau Yiu Tung was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Wong Sze Kai and Mr. Lau
Yiu Tung had ceased to be members of the Audit Committee on 12
November 2014 and 27 February 2015 respectively since their
resignation as independent non-executive Directors.

Subsequently on 4 March 2015, Mr. To Langa Samuelson was
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
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The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the committee members’ respective
attendance records are summarised as follows:
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Number of
meetings attended
(3 audit
committee meetings
in total)
HESRIRE
(EHIRERZESER)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman =M SE  FE 3/3
Mr. ZHENG Zhen #ra s 3/3
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson MEAINSEAE
(appointed on 4 March 2015) (RZE—RF=-AWBAEZM) N/A T8 A
Mr. LAU Yiu Tung (appointed BEREE (R —TF
on 18 November 2014 and ceased to be T—A+TN\BEZARRZ=ZZ—HF
member on 27 February 2015) ZTAZTERRIEEEKE) N/A A3 A
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (ceased to be member EREEAE(RZT—HF
on 12 November 2014) T—ATZHKRIEEKE) 3/3
The role and function of the Audit Committee: BERLZER 2 AG KB
Relationship with the Company’s auditors HR I AR BLER 2 B R

(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;

(c)  to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and
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AN A
TREAHE
(d) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the

Company's relations with the external auditor.

Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the Company’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to the Board,
the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgemental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;
(v} compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Exchange Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company’s external auditors;
and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the issuer’s qualified accountant, compliance officer or
external auditors;
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Oversight of the Group's financial reporting system and internal

control procedures

(9)

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to review
and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management'’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms of
reference;

to review the Company'’s arrangements for its employees can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(N to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(s)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(t)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(u)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
results and reports as well as the Company'’s internal control review
report. The Audit Committee also met the external auditor and
monitored the appointment of external auditor. Besides, the Audit
Committee performed the corporate governance duties as
delegated by the Board as discussed below.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the CG Code D.3.1. The Audit Committee reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group which are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are responsible for selecting and applying on a consistent
basis suitable accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group's overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the
Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the three months and
two months limit respectively after the end of the relevant periods.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
investments of the Shareholders and assets of the Group at all
times. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group's business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought. Management has conducted regular
reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material controls in the financial, operational
and compliance controls, various functions for risks management as
well as physical and information systems security. The Audit
Committee reviews internal control issues identified by external
auditor, regulatory authorities and the management team, and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee in
turn reports any material issues to the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or special general meetings and
Shareholders are encouraged to participate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders;
(ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with the Company;
and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights as Shareholders
effectively. However, the Board will review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general meeting
and other general meetings of the Company are primary forum for
communication between the Company and its Shareholders. The
Company shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall
be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special general
meeting shall be convened by the members of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit their
requisition in writing, in which it must state the objects of the
meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and
deposited at Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(attention of company secretary).
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date. Any
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the submission of the proposals
not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-up capital of
the company as at the date of the submission carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the company; or not less than 100
Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3 business
days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have been served
to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be
written and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be
signed by the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Units
3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong (attention of company
secretary); and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the company secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided that
the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’'s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by email: pphlhk@pphl.com.hk,
fax: (852) 2114 0292, or mail to Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is Units
3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught

Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
engaging in money lending and provision of credit business,
provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy services,
securities investments and forestry business. The activities and the
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 43 and 44.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in page 48.

DONATIONS
There was HK$60,000 donation made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
Note 18 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 30 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
Note 32 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2014 is
set out on page 14 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year. As at 31
December 2014, 2,782,102,650 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in Note 30 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 12 April 2012, a share option was granted to China Longjiang
Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation (“Longjiang Forest
Industry”) for its assistance and advice pursuant to the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement entered on 2 December 2011 for the
establishment of a strategic alliance with the Group in respect of
the development and management of the forest sized
approximately 65,800 hectares in the PNG (the “Longjiang
Option”). The Longjiang Option entitles Longjiang Forest Industry
to subscribe for not more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement
of 2 December 2011, equivalent to 495,170,096 shares. As a
consequence of the capital reorganisation effective on 15 August
2013 and the right issue (with the bonus issue) effective on 4
November 2013, the number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the Longjiang Option has been adjusted to 6,287,049
shares at the subscription price of HK$8.00 per share which have
been certified by financial adviser of the Company. As at the date
of this report, the Longjiang Option has not been exercised since
its grant date and is still in effect.
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The Company has adopted the share option scheme pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed on 12 June 2012 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) by terminating the previous share option scheme which
had expired on 21 June 2012. During the annual general meeting
held on 21 June 2013, the Shareholders duly approved that, subject
to and conditional upon the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange granting listing of and permission to deal in the shares of
the Company to be issued upon the exercise of options which may
be granted under the Company’s Share Option Scheme, the
existing scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Share Option
Scheme be refreshed and renewed provided that the total number
of shares of the Company which may be allotted and issued
pursuant to the grant or exercises of the options under the Share
Option Scheme (excluding options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Scheme)
shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 21
June 2013, that is 222,568,212 shares of the Company. The
Directors are authorised, subject to compliance with the Listing
Rules, to grant options under the Share Option Scheme up to the
Refreshed Limit and to exercise all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the
exercise of such options granted under the Share Option Scheme.
The subscription price will be a price determined by the Board and
at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted if such grant would result
in the 30% limit being exceeded. Subsequently, the said scheme
mandate limit was further refreshed as approved by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting on 18 December 2013
that 278,210,265 shares of the Company could be allotted and
issued under the Share Option Scheme. Details were shown in the
circular of the Company dated 2 December 2013. No share option
has been granted or exercised since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua

Ms. JIA Hui

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. WONG Sze Kai (ceased on 12 November 2014)

Mr. TO Langa Samuelson (appointed on 4 March 2015)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tung (appointed on 18 November 2014 and
ceased on 27 February 2015)

Mr. ZHENG Zhen

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
Corporate Governance Code Provision A.4 under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr.
Wong Chun Hung will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

In accordance with Bye-law 102(B) of the company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
To Langa Samuelson will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 12 to 13 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors and
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
considered to have any interests in the businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the
Directors were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group.
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors is a director or
employee of a company which has an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and
none of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or the chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or
maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;

(b) were required to be entered into the register

or (c) were required to be notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2014, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of
the Company's issued share capital.

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity and nature of interest

BokERNE

Su Weibiao Held by controlled corporation
AR g NCIES ¥ Sl

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Allied Summit Inc. (Note)
Allied Summit Inc. (fi3F)

Note: Allied Summit Inc. is owned as to 80% by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to remaining
20% by Mr. Ng Kwok Fai.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 83% and 31%
respectively of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of direct cost attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and
the largest supplier represented approximately 69% and 50%
respectively of the Group's total direct cost.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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FERRREAQXARGREERD 2
BER /KR

RZZ-—NF+-_A=1—8 REEFNLHE
ERBIFEXVERFE 336 M EFEZ T BIRRE M
Fiacst  RNAGIEHAGUTEEZRREEERRA
EEITIRANS5% A L 2 &S ROKR -

RELATEBBERZER
Percentage of
Number of the Company'’s
shares issued share
interested capital (%)
AR AT B ERIT
R E=E B BT 7 E (%)
1,621,219,755 58.27
1,621,219,755 58.27

Btat - Allied Summit Inc. FRERAEAR 5 A WA 80% i 2 - T R
¥R AR BT 20% i 2 o

BEEEHN
FR ST A FEHRARAR 2 HREME
REDEBERRITRZEN -

IEFEFRHER
BE-T-ME+-A=+—BILFE FEH
AREP REAEF R RIS AR A%
B 4B I 4183% S 31% °

RE-T—MF+-A=+—BILER  A%E
PR e PR L A e e B
1 PRI LA B IR PR KD 69% R 50%

EERREFEMBHBEALHEMBR GREEHMR
HMBEEARRREHITHRABAESR) HERAEHE
IARFPRMHERTHEAEMES R o



ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed above, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2014 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements does not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. No disclosure requirement is
needed accordingly.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014 and as
at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

AUDITORS BBk
The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 AARBE_Z—WE+_A=+—HILEEZ

December 2014 were audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company BifRETIETZ(FE) MBS ERER AT
Limited. A o

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited shall retire and, being HFZ(FE) M EXRAERAFEEET &
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming A &R BEERRNATERRERE XSS

annual general meeting of the Company. B -

On behalf of the Board REXESE

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited REFEEZERBRAT
Huang Chuan Fu FE

Chairman B5ERE

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015 E8 —E—RF=A=-+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g

TO THE MEMBERS OF

PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
AFFEXREZERERLT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific
Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 144,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

= RVR R LGRS

& (&8 ) EETESEHRARAD
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited

BAPFEXREZERERLF
ERBRR

(REFZETIMELZBRALA)

AZEED OA TR [RMDEEXTENELE
TMAEXPFERERARAR(TERA]) E
MEAR(SHE[E5E]) 2EEMBHRE - EF
BER-_Z-—OF+-A=+—HZHEEHBKNK
MBREBEZRALLFEZHGAEGR  HAR
mREMEERGEHRE  SERREDHRIES
BanER URETZSHABRME REMA

EENGAMBRRARKEZER

BERRBEFARERBETEGITMAGRHLE
IR s R BB D EHERD 2 R T e
LEBRFHIIHREEMBHREK  WREEES
RRERBUR GBS IAR N = B B 2 AEPESE -
A AR A M MAR T P ERRFFRER MG
ERERRL -

BBz BT

BN ETEREBERFNBEZH U ETEE YR
RERBR  URBEREQTEFENKRERE
BRI E - Rz s ABEHEEMBE R -
BT ERAREZATAEAMEMALE L5
EEEMEE - RACREEES AR
ZEBBENEAETESZ - EEENBERRERME
SRR WREILRTESR  LAEETR
BRBHRREE TFEEAEXERRAL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 S BN ¥

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Lam Chik Tong

Practising Certificate Number: P05612

Suites 313-316

3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Z,-\-./\ |:|\/
AR 1B m

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—g-DmF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT
Turnover — gross proceeds EEE — EREESE 8 65,165 44,782
Revenue Wz 9 65,165 29,693
Interest income 2 WA 63,327 19,955
Others Hi 1,838 9,738
Cost of sales THERAR (1,857) (5,341)
Interest expenses MEFAX 10 (926) (1,130)
Other cost of sales HibsHEKAK (931) 4.211)
Gross profit S 63,308 24,352
Other income and gains HAA RS 11 19,403 15,393
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and interest FEWE R K F SR E 1R
receivables 24 8,076 5,000
Impairment loss recognised in respect of gooduwill HEEERREEE 19 (67,019) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade YRR 2 REEE
receivables 25 (60) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RAEHESRHEERR
available-for-sale financial assets ZHEEE 23(a) (14,523) -
Gain on disposal of convertible instruments HERRIR T A (BB A%
designated as financial assets at fair value NHEBEBRRIEZ
through profit or loss SREE) 2 W 22 - 27,347
Change in fair value of convertible instruments AR T A (35 AR
designated as financial assets at fair value NP EFBIERTIRZ
through profit or loss TREE) A TEZS 22 - 35,491
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets &R HE SRS E 2 Y 3,430 -
Administrative expenses 1THER (32,637) (32,980)
Operating (loss) profit fee (BE) &AM (20,022) 74,603
Finance costs BB RN 10 - (96)
(Loss) profit before tax PR Al (B518) m A (20,022) 74,507
Income tax expense Fris R 12 (6,899) -
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) B 13 (26,921) 74,507
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: T 5B EEMGF R (BR)ER
Owners of the Company VNI Y-\ (26,008) 75,597
Non-controlling interests R (913) (1,090)
(26,921) 74,507
(Loss) earnings per share: BR(EE) BF 17
Basic (HK cents) EAR (B (0.93) 6.05
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (B() (0.93) 6.05

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 8w MEM SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

2014
—E—MmE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B et FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER) =5 (26,921) 74,507
Other comprehensive income Hiz2mEka

Items that may be subsequently reclassified HEAEHRSEEEFZ

to profit or loss: b= =
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEESRERE

— Change in fair value — N EE 23 531,502 28,462

— Reclassification adjustment upon — BERIELES D

impairment FEE 14,523 -

Exchange differences arising on translation MEEAXZIERER 1,277 1,525
Other comprehensive income for the year FAHMEERE 547,302 29,987
Total comprehensive income for the year FREMKBLEE 520,381 104,494
Total comprehensive income (expenses) THRIEEERE

attributable to: Wrsm (B ) 4858 :

Owners of the Company KATHEA A 520,400 104,517

Non-controlling interests e (19) (23)

520,381 104,494
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KR BB R

At 31 December 2014
RZZ—mF+=-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible asset

Deposit for acquisition of logging concession
Available-for-sale financial assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Loan and interest receivables
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest payable

Borrowings

Tax payable

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

YE NG
mE

BVEE

ICE PSSR kv
AftHESREE

RBEE

JE W E R B F B

IR W B R e LAt R MUK IR
RITREBRNIRE

RBAE
His AN B &
FERIFIE

tEE

FEfITHIR

RBEERE

EERERRBAE

2014

—E—MmE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FET FET
18 527 1,394
19 239,000 306,019
20 1,194 _
21 221 242
23 797,503 264,165
1,038,445 571,820
24 391,584 222,430
25 24,189 16,467
26 67,734 248,757
483,507 487,654
27 3,684 1,417
= 1,130
28 - 65,000
5,960 -
9,644 67,547
473,863 420,107
1,512,308 991,927

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR MR FR R

At 31 December 2014
RZZE-—WF+ZA=+—H

2014
—E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaF F#ET FHTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital [N 30 2,782 2,782
Share premium A% 1% (B 721,226 721,226
Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation A HESREEEGHHE
reserve 574,487 28,462
Share-based payment reserve AR ) RERT R FE 1,367 1,367
Contributed surplus BEREH 277,102 277,102
Translation reserve b 681 298
Accumulated losses En | (65,479) (39,471)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNARIEH A fE(LHER 1,512,166 991,766
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M 2 142 161
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 1,512,308 991,927

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 144 were F 43R V44 BFEGEAHERRECNR T —1F
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 = A=+ HEEEH & LRETE - Wh T3

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: ATRERESE
Huang Chuan Fu Liang Jian Hua
Director Director
EE EE
=2EE R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\"—.r\ 1=-"- /\ /\ P2 Eb %

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(E=T-NF+_A=1+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Available-for-
sale financial
assets e-bas Non-
Share Share revaluation ) Contributed Translation  Accumulated controlling

capital premium reserve il surplus reserve losses ) interests

i RiyaE 3 B G g
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 ' HK$000 HKS 000 ' HK$000 HKS 000
TAT FhL T Thx Thn AT Thx T
At1 January 2013 W-F-=5-F-0 17805 524993 - 1367 100717 (160) (115,068) 689,903 18 490067
Profit lss) for the year Ematl(58) - - - - - - 75597 75597 (1,090) 74507

Other comprehensive income £ REM2EHH

for the year
Items that may be subsequently ~ Z#TEF HEZHEEL
reclassified to profit or loss: g
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets:
— Change in fair value —LTEEY - - 28462 - - - - 2462 - 28,462
Exchenge differences aising ~ BEEEZEREE
on translation - - - - - 458 - 458 1,067 1525
- - 28,462 - - 458 - 28920 1,067 29987
Totel comprehensiveincome A2 AN ()48
(expenses) for the year - - 28462 - - 458 75597 104,517 ) 104,494
Capital reduction (Note 0(b) BB (H30) (177.498) - - - 177,498 - - - - -
Issue of right shares (Note 30(c)  B{TH R (4 0) "3 199199 - - - - - 200312 - 200312
Right issues expenses HREL - (2966) - - - - - (2,966) - (2966)
Issue of bonus shares (Note 30(c)  ET4LR (42 30¢) 1113 - - - (1,113 - - - - -
(175,272) 196233 - - 176,385 - - 197,34 - 197,34
At31 December 2013 REF-ZE+ZA=1-8 2182 721,226 2,462 1367 277,102 9 (39471) 991,766 161 991927

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




MENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARIRRAER
Available-for-
sale financial
assets  Share-based Non-
Share Share revaluation payment  Contributed Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests
qfLE WG
SREE RER
i Riva® Efifif iR LE b EffE ZithR 2t FERER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén Thn Tén Tén Thn Tén

At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-A-A

Loss for the year FREE

Other comprehensive income ~ EREM2EHH

for the year
Items that may be subsequently £ FEH HEZER 7

reclassified to profit or loss: g

Available-for-sale financial TREESHEE:
assets:
—Change in fai value —LTREY
—Reclassffication adjustment ~ —RERZEFHE

upon impaimment ol

Exchange diferences arising~~ EEEER 28

on translation

Totel comprehensiveincome ~ EAZEUH (F%) €8
(expenses) for the year

At 31 December 2014 RZE-RME+=f=1-R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

2014
—Z—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Loss) profit before tax bR AT (E518) & (20,022) 74,507
Adjustments for: HE
Interest income B HA (2) 6,317)
Dividend income BB UA (19,397) (9,076)
Finance costs BMEKAR 926 1,226
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREBBITE
equipment 932 1,210
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and EWEFR RN ERE
interest receivables E51E R El (8,076) (5,000)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEERRAZREESE
goodwill 67,019 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BB AR HER 2 B E
trade receivables 60 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HAEHESREERRZ
available-for-sale financial assets B E 14,523 -
Change in fair value of convertible AR T A (BT REATE
instruments designated as financial assets BERBRIIRZEREE)
at fair value through profit or loss Z RV ER - (35,491)
Gain on disposal of convertible instruments & AI# AR T A (F57E #1&
designated as financial asset at fair value N EBEBIRZ
through profit or loss TREE) 2 W - (27,347)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESRMEE Y
financial assets Ygs (3,430) -
Gain on disposal of investment held for PERIERHITE 2 Wz
trading - (2,081)
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHH 2
in working capital KReERRE 32,533 (8,369)
Increase in loan and interest receivables JE I E 3R K ) B A N (161,078) (89,784)
Decrease in trade and other receivables JE U BR SR N L A s R I R 1,665 179
Increase (decrease) in other payables and Hh e RIE R e B
accruals and interest payable KR FEE M ORD) 2,267 (466)
Cash used in operations KEXEBFER RS (124,613) (98,440)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refunded (B REEBFEH (939) 68
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXRERZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (125,552) (98,372)

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
l\VT\/\IE: \/ ;ﬁl%%

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-—NME+-A=1+—HIFE

2014
—E-ImF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale ~ HEAEHESREE Y
financial assets FriS /18 15,606 -
Dividend received B B 9,413 -
Interest received from convertible instruments Ft A3 A% T A (8 7F A% A FE
designated as financial asset at fair value FRERIIR EMEE)
through profit or loss [=AL &IPS 537 7,465
Bank interest received BRI TF B 2 2
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets & A H &% E‘ﬂﬁ& (14,012) (139,781)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition FRKE-ERNBEA
of a subsidiary WHE & = (1,194) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEEW - BE&EH (65) (29)
Net proceed from disposal of convertible HEMBRK T A (BT AR
instruments designated as financial assets NEFEBERIIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BREE) L FTISHIBFE = 167,550
Net proceed from disposal of investment held H&E#H{1ERX SR E 2 FTEHIAE
for trading HER = 17,131
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEBEL RS FHE 10,287 52,338
FINANCING ACTIVITIES EEE
Repayment of borrowings EREE (65,000) -
Interest paid BRI (2,056) (3,430)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon IR 2L TR (D 2 P8 18
rights issue = 200,312
Proceeds from new borrowings BB R FSIE = 65,000
Repayment of note payable EEENREE = (10,000)
Payment for rights issue expenses AR = (2,966)
Repayment to directors MEFENX = (154)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REZEE (EFR)ELE2RLFHE

ACTIVITIES (67,056) 248,762
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HERBREEEBY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) & inF 58 (182,321) 202,728
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—BA—HBZEREKES

AT 1 JANUARY £EY 248,757 44,477
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INBIER B H) o B 1,298 1,552
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—HA=+—8%z2

AT 31 DECEMBER BERBESEEY

represented by bank balances and cash BIRITEBREE S 67,734 248,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are money lending and
provision of credit business, provision of corporate secretarial
and consultancy services, securities investments and forestry
business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Group.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE-T—NF+-A=1+—HILFE
—R&EHR
RKEFEXEZERAERAR(ARRT]) AREAE
REFME Iz EHRRBEREMERR] - HK
MREREBMER GBI AR (BT
e A 2 A 9 = & H 4k & Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda * MEZEEMIAMCNELE LR
T#HER 168—2005);7 =& d 0 7 E33E
3301-03F °

AEEXZUREEEREERER - UiRHD

EMWERAE AR  EITEFRELRME

e BBmRAEIT (BT 25 - TRBIAR
BEEH

KRB A ) DU




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs")

In current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") for the first time.
Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(IFRIC*)-Interpretation 21 Levies

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 AND
HKAS 27 (2011) INVESTMENT ENTITIES

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate
financial statements.

To quality as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with investment management
services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based
on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January 2014), the
application of the amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)
AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first
time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify
the requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

As the Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 36 RECOVERABLE
AMOUNT DISCLOSURES FOR NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS
36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset or a
CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal. These
new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in line
with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ("HKASs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exception. Early application is permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with

earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with

earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ("HKASs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include (a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and (b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
(FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debts instruments.

through other comprehensive income”

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EERFHITREZEITEBUBREE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B((EEMBREER ) REE

("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING XA ([FE2HEL ) @)

STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEMBRELAUFIREMT AR

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities o  HEEETRATEEBRABERIIEZ
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS TREBEMS  FEMBERELRE9
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of FRERETRBEZEERRE
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in ZERMBEATEESHE  INA
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other fhEEP S22, RIENEMEEIR
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the nERZABZEERREH 2 TE
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other W EE SR IE KRB 2 gt R BI1ER
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an wmeRETHMABEERRESH &
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair BMEEATEZY BRIENER
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the RENHE  BREBEFESTEREI9
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently % EERATERBERIEZS
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire MBEATEZES 2 EEEINIE
amount of the change in fair value of financial liability A2 e

designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS ° MEMEEZREAMS  EF BT
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed HRIE VBB TREEEEEEBER
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The HtEBER - BEMBRELERIE IR
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account REREPHEEEFERNTE - B
for expected credit losses and changes in those EEFEERAATERNEREEH
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect BIEREEBERZERHREEEE
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other ZEBAR  URMEERRETH
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to WRUARzEE - MFT 2 BABR
have occurred before credit losses are recognised. BEEEEMTRAEEEE -

e The new general hedge accounting requirements retain o HEI—REMEHTERE =ZTEEF
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater SRR AT FBREREE
flexibility has been introduced to the types of BIEHASHREBE SRR SHRHEE
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically REEEMN  BRHZEMEERER
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for HrTAZTARBARREGERBIELH
hedging instruments and the types of risk components BRTRIBZIFTMIER ZARKNDE
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge Bl e BEAN - BRSORI AR A Al AR 5T 3E A
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been [ AR R | R AEUR o b A R IR i
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an AHEITIB AT AZ o 3T E R RS A
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of MEEEREERREEEB 2T

hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ("HKASs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS 38
CLARIFICATION OF ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption
can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

(@)  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of

revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group
uses the straight-line method for depreciation for its property,
plant and equipment. The Directors believe that the straight-
line method is the most appropriate method to reflect the
consumption of economic benefits inherent in the respective
assets and accordingly, the Directors do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 will have a material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)
AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 19 DEFINED BENEFIT
PLANS: EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third parties
to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of
years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered, or to attribute them
to the employees’ periods of service using the projected unit
credit method; whereas for contributions that are dependent
on the number of years of service, the entity is required to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have any defined benefit plans.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 27 EQUITY METHOD IN
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements:

° At cost

° In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)
AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 27 EQUITY METHOD IN
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be
an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall
account for the change from the date when the change in
status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10 AND HKAS 28 SALE
OR CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BETWEEN AN
INVESTOR AND ITS ASSOCIATE OR JOINT
VENTURE

Amendments to HKAS 28:

o The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets
that do not constitute a business.

o A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in
the investor’s financial statements.

o A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should
be accounted for as a single transaction.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAFHTRLETEBUMBEHRELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B((EEMBREER ) REE
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING XA ([FE2HEL ) @)
STANDARDS (“"HKASs") (Continued)
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10 AND HKAS 28 SALE BERMBREENEI10RREBEH
OR CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BETWEEN AN ERIE28K(ERTAR) REERHB
INVESTOR AND ITS ASSOCIATE OR JOINT ENRANAECEKBEELERRA
VENTURE (Continued) (%)
Amendments to HKFRS 10: BB B EERE 105 (B A0):
An exception from the general requirement of full gain e ATHAEBWRZ —MELZAIMER
or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10 EMABETBREERIE 105 - P
for the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not REHE 2 QA e & (URRE
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a FIBR) 2 R G KREN ) E EHK 2 M
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity AR IR -
method.
New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains e FISIAFIESIZERZERGMERE
or losses resulting from those transactions are MNERBEEER - WIEAFEEER
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the BENZBERNRSGEE I ER
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that PR o EEH - R A E AR
associate or join venture. Similarly, gains and losses HEPE(URRIEYIER) 2 EMATH
resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of BARIMREBEZREATEENAE
investments retained in any former subsidiary that has FrGRE NEARERER  WE
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted IR EERFHE R RNE S
for using the equity method are recognised in the EESRBR -
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.
The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these ExREY ERAEBMBRELERE 105K
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material BB EAFE28R (BTN TEEHARE
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements. EReBmRENERTE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“"HKASs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010-2012
CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
"vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (ii) add
definitions for “performance condition” and “service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of “vesting condition”. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014,

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-
financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit or loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segment, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have “similar economic characteristics”;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only
be provided if the segments assets are regularly provided to
the chief operating decision-maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ("HKASs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2010-2012
CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As the
amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into
account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“"HKASs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2011-2013
CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“"HKASs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2012-2014
CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or
vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the
offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments to
HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in
the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds
being assessed at currency level. The amendments apply
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning
of that period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2012-2014
CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating
to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the
interim financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference
from the interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the same
terms and at the same time as the interim financial
statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure
requirements by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

GOODWILL (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Consultancy income is recognised when services are
provided.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading are
recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised fair value
gains or losses are recognised on change in fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefit will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
LEASING

All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

FTESHBE®E)

SN ()
ERBEAZENERINESHRER R
R AT EIRPIIN -

s EAWBREEERZEREEZI
BIEEEREZEGIARFEEZKAE)
AR DINEEE T B Z AR

o REMETINERBRMET RS ZE
AEBRTXREEBER) « &

. FH&TJW‘J‘*IE?I\%?FXZTMIEH
RS- R DI NG
Rt REBINEIFIREFRE L — E‘
W #1257 E At 2 T W a5 R AR S pAME
EREERHEaER O REES

ﬁ/i

Uﬂﬂ}

&

REIFAMBEHRE  AREBINEHZE
ERAEIERERERREREXRBRE
RAEEZZ2E% (BNET) - MAEWKIE
BRIRFAFHEXRBE - RIFFRETKA
ERE  ERERT  AIRARSHZER
" - FﬁFiZER%%ﬁ(ﬁDﬁ)i’ﬂﬁé\E{mi
EH&Z¥ C WiNER TP ERE R TR
(ani@ E'J?%EA#? Petss) o

W INRIGE £ 2 TR K5k P UL 7] A
BELAERBEERZ A FERERIEZ
BINEH 2 EERBERE  WIRNEHRE
HRZEXRBE - TELZELZBENEAM
2 HRETER

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the change in fair values of
investment held for trading and change in fair values of
financial assets at FVTPL in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible instruments acquired by the Group (including
related embedded derivatives) are designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the entire
convertible instruments are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL or held-to-maturity investments or
loans and receivables. The Group designated the long term
investments in listed and unlisted equity securities as
available-for-sale financial assets on initial recognition of
those items.

Paciy c Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

FTESHBE®E)

eI E(E)

THEE (&

ERFEBAERIR /M EE (B)
BEATEEBERIKRZeMEENIEATF
BitE  MEFEEA ZERAETIRIE
mHER RNERHPER BB FETBE
TREERN 2 AMRENRFIE - REREE
HERARIWERFERZIREZ AFEES T
BEATEFAERIIEZeMEEZ ATE
HE) o NTEDNEESVEREANET7 ATt
HREE -

A58 B AR B AT 1 T AL (R 4B AT A T
) TSRS RBE 5 B A FEEBIE
AT - RIS RAE - BETRE TR
BATE RN HE B E R AR
Rz ATFEEBTE -

AR A E
AHfHESREERLEIEE R HHES
W EDEREAFEEEREINRZERE
EXFARIMzRESER LS FIAE L
HTETE - AEERNTHRZFEE
B EmRIEETRAES 2 RERE R
ERAHfHESREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
accumulated impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including loan and
interest receivables, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables, assets
are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan and interest receivables and trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a loan and
interest receivable or a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and
accruals, interest payable and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair value of those parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the shares options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants (Continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will continue to be held in share-based
payment reserve.

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

FESHBE®)
REEBNIEREEREFEERE

(#)

A Y0 £ BB T IR X SRR AR AN LA R (B
BEMEPZESE - £AEREER {4
AARKBREREGHRARHARGR KRS
HIFME - BB ATRAR R B R R B i
BEZENMSIHERZEERE ZRR (R
YRR BEGEFRARRERE) -

WEE (HREELEN) 2 W EIEEBET
EREKRAEE AZEE(RBRTELE
) ZBRHEEREE WO SRR - RERE
BB R R 2R MR

iR EREERERFMELD - BIZEE (X
ReELEM) cRmEELEEBaRe
AT El S EE - MR ANR Z BREE T SRR i
BE (SIRSELEN) WEFERERRE
BRI EA Z BRE(E BB R R B B R

B ER o

BRETTHABR AT TREMZE
E IR
RERGARBREMEIMAZ AEEE
SRR - BEAUAREEIBE M RRREE
ZAEREEZREEEL A - i RE
8 o iR 2 3t RARRRER DA B %
REMBPEABBZAEREE - BB
AL Z S TR -

it RAARRER I FERE o B ST
ZAERTERBETIER] 28I - AR ZHIRE
R - RIS RT R E B A RORKEE - AR
B A S R R B R

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\VT\

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

S

4.

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Control over Profit Grand Enterprises Limited (“Profit
Grand”) and its subsidiary, I-Sky Natural Resources (PNG)
Limited (“I-Sky Natural”) (collectively referred to as the
“Profit Grand Group”)

Profit Grand is a subsidiary of the Group despite the fact that
the Group has only 30% equity interest of the Profit Grand
Group. The Group obtained the control over the majority
composition of the board of directors of Profit Grand and
51% of the total voting rights in the general meetings of Profit
Grand, in which they control the relevant activities of the
Group. After assessment, the Directors concluded that the
Group has control over the Profit Grand Group.

Investment in Million Wealth Capital Investment Limited
("Million Wealth”)

As described in Note 23(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the unlisted investment in redeemable
convertible preference shares of Million Wealth is recognised
as available-for-sale financial assets of the Group as the
Group has not actively participated in the daily operation and
no involvement in the policy-making process of Million
Wealth for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
After assessment, the Directors consider that the Group had
neither control nor significant influence over Million Wealth
and treated the investment in redeemable convertible
preference shares as available-for-sale financial assets as a

long-term investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies the listed equity securities investments
as available-for-sale financial assets and recognises changes
of their fair values in other comprehensive income. When the
fair value declines, management makes judgement to
determine if the decline in value is significant or prolonged
and whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended 31
December 2014, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$14,523,000 (2013: Nil) was recognised for available-for-
sale financial assets. The carrying amounts of the listed equity
securities investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets as at 31 December 2014 were HK$707,503,000 (2013:
HK$174,165,000), the details of which were set out in Note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group classifies the unlisted investments in redeemable
convertible preference shares as available-for-sale financial
assets and recognises at cost less accumulated impairment.
The management makes judgement to determine if such
investment is impaired, by evaluating the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee including the
operating and financing cash flow. During the year ended 31
December 2014, no impairment loss (2013: Nil) was
considered necessary in relation to the unlisted investments.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. During the year ended 31
December 2014, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$67,019,000 (2013: Nil) was considered necessary in relation
to the goodwill. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount
of goodwill is approximately HK$239,000,000 (2013:
HK$306,019,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment allowances on loan and interest receivables
The Group establishes, through charges against the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, impairment
allowances in respect of estimated incurred loss in loan and
interest receivables. The allowances consist of individual
impairment allowances. The overall impairment allowances
represent the aggregate amount by which the management
considers necessary to write-down its loan portfolio in order
to state it in the consolidated statement of financial position
at its estimated net recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence of impairment.
When loan receivable is impaired, an individual impairment
allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow method,
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment allowances on loan and interest receivables
(Continued)

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no impairment
loss in respect of loan and interest receivables (2013: Nil) had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were
determined using valuation techniques. The Group had used
its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and
make assumption, on issuer’s credit spread, discount rate,
expected credit rating and future cash flow, that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the transaction date
and each reporting date with reference to the valuation
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”),
an independent firm of professional valuers. Changes in
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed
in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The convertible instruments designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss was fully disposed of during
the year ended 31 December 2013. Change in fair value of
the convertible instruments designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$35,491,000
is recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. In cases where
the taxes charged by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department are different from the estimated amounts, a
material tax charge may arise. In addition, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$3,525,000 (2013: HK$5,985,000) as it is uncertain that there
will be sufficient future profits available to utilise the balances.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The management determines
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available.

Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes borrowings, net of bank balances and cash and total
equity comprising issued share capital and reserves. Details
of which are disclosed in respective notes.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital, and
take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
borrowings, less bank balances and cash. Total capital is
calculated as “total equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt. The Group aims
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
gearing ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

EXEEEE

AEBERRER  AREAEERTES
B EEE - AN E AR
8 ERREERARE - AEEZ 2]
R RRTE -
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k

N
<

BX
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A g B 2 AR A o (EOEDR 4R (o BB A
B RS RS U RS (R
5 5B TR AR R B ) 4B - BN HAHE R
HRE -

EEERRNEARGRE - ERILRE THFE—
B BEEEEEAKANEAEIRE AR
ZRER  WREBGEETHARBAKEZE
AEERE -

AEBRBEEAGBL T (REFFHERINA
BRBREGE)ERER - FIRFREIRE
ERBRITERRIREAE - EARRBIIRE
MBI MR R [ @5 | INER
FRAHE  AEB KB EERBEL RER
REMKRF - RI|EHRZEEABL RN
T

2014 2013

—F-mE  —T=F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET TETT

Borrowings (Note 28) &8 (M 28) - 65,000

Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITEBRRS (67,734) (248,757)

Net debt BIEFRE (67,734) (183,757)

Total equity W 4RE 1,512,308 991,927

Total capital B4R 1,444,574 808,170
Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital) BEAGBHLER

(BIRFHEEEARER) (4.7%) (22.7%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T@WMIA
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SRITEER
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 797,503 264,165
Loans and receivables: ER N EW IS
Loan and interest receivables FEWE R EFE 391,584 222,430
Trade and other receivables JFEE Ui BR R e LAt B L R IR 20,849 11,483
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 67,734 248,757
1,277,670 746,835
Financial liabilities EA =R
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: T SE A AR ER 2 HAM
SREE:
Other payables and accruals Hh & < 5RIE M fE 5T B 3,620 1,353
Interest payable JERT TS - 1,130
Borrowings ==t = 65,000
3,620 67,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan and
interest receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, other
payables and accruals, interest payable and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

MARKET RISK

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Independent
State of Papua New Guinea (“PNG") with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in HK$ and Kina
("PGK"). No foreign currency risk has been identified for the
PNG subsidiary’s financial assets denominated in PGK, which
is the functional currency of the PNG subsidiary to which
these transactions relate.

As at 31 December 2014, certain financial assets of the Group
are denominated in RMB, which expose the Company to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the Group's
RMB denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

RMB AR

7.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

MHEEREERERBE

AEEZIZ2oMTABERKEREA
B A ESREE - RERR R EAME
WkiE ~ RITHESHR LR S - BMENFIER
EETER  BNFEREE - ERMTAZF
BREREM R - MR T AMAREL
R BEmEER (SN R - FXER K
HiERER) - EERRNMRBDESRR
IR Z SRR 2 RN T X - EEEEE
RERZERR - BREEAPGREVEE
o=y

AEER eI AMAXERERIHLER
MEtEAMRR 2L EES -

™5 B

S E AR
AEBETZAEFEREHEHMENEBILE
(TEmDHMENT DEEER MAZHR
FAETTRER((ER])EE - AEHEH
THENTHB R AER(RZEMER
HEANTHBARRRER A ZWEEE)
FHEZ EBEEZRISNERR o

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=t+—H x&EH
TERMEEAARETE A< AR EE
ZHONERK - BEREPRAKBEUARE
FHEZEREEZREEWNT

Assets
BE
2014 2013
—E =4
HK$'000
FATT

—E-nmE
HK$’'000
TET

456 426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2013: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currency. A 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicate an decrease/increase in
pre-tax loss/profit when the HK$ weaken 5% (2013: 5%)
against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2013: 5%)
strengthening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there

would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/profit.

7.

AR EEEERBER @)

T 35 B ()
S m g (4E)
FEBFEAZ ARBRR -

2R FF AN S B JT H AR RS AN 1208 5%
(ZF—=F : 5%) 2BEE - 5% (=ZF—=
F:5%) BRAEBEEABRNIERINEE,
MSFEACHRELE  RBEERELHING
ERESIEAIREEB) 27T - REDTESR
FEUAINBETE REEFEBIEE - EHER
WMERR 2L EZINEERIZFHS%(ZF
—=F 1 5%)EITHE o

AT ESBRE BT A ABEEERES% (=
T—=F:5%) EHBAEIE 8 F 2R
DA BT HAREEETES% (ZF
—=F:5%) AgHEE sl ELRS
miARZFZE -

RMB impact

ARB2®E
2014 2013

—E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Decrease/increase in pre-tax loss/profit FRATEE, % R A,/ 1 N 23 21
Interest rate risk FI R & f

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances
with floating interest rates which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Loan and interest receivables and
borrowings at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Notes 24 and 28,
respectively. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management monitors the
Group's interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates for cash flow
interest rate risk, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's net loss/profit.

2014 —E—mE

2013 —T—=

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. If the
prices of the respective available-for-sale equity instruments
had been 5% (2013: 5%) higher/lower, available-for-sale
financial assets revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2014 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$35,375,000 (2013: HK$8,708,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of listed equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

R EEEERBEER @)

T 35 B ()
= m g (48)
BN E DT

TRETEMBEMBEBERTET A

@Jﬁéﬂa/m%l FREERSREF KRR 2 F
KEEAREB  BRE -
Increase/ Decrease/
decrease in increase
interest rate in pre-tax
(basis point) loss/profit
BaEsE
FlZR (R E) wAEAD
EH TR Yl
HK$'000
FHIT
100 676
100 2,487

At B m R

REHE ltﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%&’éﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%
k- EREBEBEFRATRRR 2 ZEMR
BEEMARE -

HBE T
AT BREE DT R RS B IR AE S
BEBmMET - WS EEIHEERATAZ
Jﬂtﬂ/Tﬁcrs% —E—=F:5%) B
—E-UE+ZA=T—RIEFESEA
LﬁﬁﬁénﬂéF‘Ztﬁ?H&$ s JPA/N L]
EHBEFAREESHEEEHHER
/N #)35,3750008 T (Z B — =4 :
Tt Ao 13 hn, ek 4> 8,708,000 7T )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE—
7.

Z-HE+ZA=+—RALFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to the loan and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of loan and interest receivables and trade and other
receivables individually or collectively at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group's concentration of credit
risk by geographical location is Hong Kong, which accounted
for 100% (2013: 100%) of the total loan and interest
receivables and trade and other receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no impairment
loss in respect of loan and interest receivables has been
recognised (2013: Nil). The Directors consider the credit risk is
under control since the management exercise due care and
check the financial background of these debtors on a regular
basis.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from the
Group's money lending business, 19% (2013: 22%) of the total
gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 December 2014
was due from the Group's largest customer and 69% (2013:
77%) of the total loan receivables as at 31 December 2014 was
due from the Group's five largest customers for the Group's
money lending business.

The credit risks for bank balances are considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with good credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims at maintaining a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents. Details of the Group's other payables
and accruals, interest payable and borrowings are disclosed
in respective notes. The Directors have reviewed the Group's
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
determined that the Group has no significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities in
accordance with the earliest date on which the Group would
be required to pay.

7.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-F WG+ —A=+— AR
7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HEERETERERBE @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at

REBESREMR ()
ZRBEMNELAACHESRE - WANERE
REE - AIRMIR SR B ME PR ZF =R
FHARTS I o

the end of the reporting period.

Weighted On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year cash flows amounts
ik RER REH
FGF= F—Fr RERELE RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2014 R=-Z—ME
+=A=+-A
Other payables and accruals HtENFERESNER | NAFER 3,620 3,620 3,620
At 31 December 2013 RNZE—Z=F
+=ZRA=+—
Other payables and accruals Hib N HIENETER N/A i 1,353 1,353 1,353
Interest payable FERTA S N/A i 1,130 1,130 1,130
Borrowings )} 10% 67,066 67,066 65,000
69,549 69,549 67,483
FAIR VALUE DNVE

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

R EEEERBEER @)

FAIR VALUE (Continued) NEEE)
Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets that are AEFSHEEZ R FEDIFER L FES
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) =2(8)

Fair value as at
RUT A2 AYE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
“Z-QmF “E-=F

t=A=+-B fZA=t+-H

Financial asset

EREE

Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
fEERM &

TERARE

hierarchy

DFERA

Listed equity securities classified as Assets — Assets — Level T Quoted bid prices in
available-for-sale financial assets approximately approximately £ an active market
in the consolidated statement of HK$707,503000  HK$174,165,000 N R E YN
financial position BE— EE—
REERBRABRHERAHEE 4970750300087 £1174,165,0007% 7
SEEEZ FTTRAES
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the RAEERBEEE £—H F-_HRE
current and prior years. = 7 B R o
Fair value hierarchy: NEEBE :

Level 1
E—R
HK$'000
FEx
2014 —E-IF
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESFEE 707,503

Level 2
et 1

Level 3 Total
EZR st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET

HK$'000
FERT

707,503

Level 1
F—M
HK$'000
FHET
2013 Tz
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRHEE 174,165

Level 2 Level 3 Total
- B 4B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT

174,165

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

8.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable from the business of money lending and provision
of credit, provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy
services and securities investments during the year. There was
no turnover generated from forestry business during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. The following is an
analysis of the Group's turnover:

Interest income from loan receivables

Consultancy income EEEILON
Gross proceeds from disposal of HERERSHIRE
investment held for trading FTiS s BB 5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors (the “Board”),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group. Specifically, the Group's reportable
and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Money lending — business of money lending
and provision of credit
2. Consultancy — provision of corporate secretarial
services and consultancy services
3. Securities — trading of securities and
investments investment in long-term
securities
4.  Forestry business — forest logging and harvesting

Paciy c Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

JEWE 2 F BUA

—E S

LEBEFAKREBER  F8 - RHOEW
ERFBARBULEFREET 2R E
WHSREER #E_Z-—NER_F
—=FtZA=THLEFE HTMEHKL
BETEXB -UTKRAKEZERED
#r

2014 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

DEER (@)
DEBN S KR &

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments:

Year ended 31 December 2014

Turnover — gross proceeds

Segment revenue
From external customers

Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate income

Loss before tax

Year ended 31 December 2013

Turnover — gross proceeds

Segment revenue
From external customers

Segment results
Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate income

Finance costs

Profit before tax

BE-E-RF
TZAZt-HLEEE

BXE—MEHRER

B A B 1R

BXE — MEUERE

AARRARX
s NG UN
RENA

BREATE R

Money
lending
&

HK$'000

TR

AEBRAI2HMKLE

EotrunT

Consultancy
services
EH R
HK$'000
TAT

Securities
investments
HK$'000
TER

BRI D 2 Wk K

Forestry
business
AMER
HK$'000

TEx

Total
@t
HK$'000
THET

63,327 1,838 - - 65,165
63,327 1,838 - - 65,165
66,686 (4,080) 8,185 (71,929) (1,138)
(18,890)

6

(20,022)

Money
lending

fE&

HK$'000

57

19,955

Consultancy

services

i RS
HK$'000

T

7,657

Securities
investments
BHRE
HK$'000
57

17170

Forestry

business
ISR
HK$000

T

44,782

19,955

7,657

2,081

29,693

18,782

245

80,279

(5,163)

94,143

(19,553)

(%)

74,507
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue

generated from external customers. There were no inter-

segment sales in the current year (2013: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the

same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results

represent the profit earned by (loss from) each segment

without allocation of central administration costs, directors’

emoluments, bank interest income, certain other income and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Board for
the purposes of the resources allocation and assessment of

segment performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

At 31 December 2014
ASSETS

Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Money Consultancy
lending
fB&

HK$'000
THR
R-E-ME+=A=1+—-H

442,861

afE 19
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Securities Forestry
business
AMER
HK$'000

TR

Total
@t
HK$'000
THET

investments
HK$'000
TEx

services
B
HK$'000

TER

1,257 827,207 239,221 1,510,546

11,406

1,521,952

153 - - 172
9,472

9,644




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) THEERERE ()

Money Consultancy ~ Securities Forestry
lending services  investments business
e #ARE  E5RE BHEER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT 757 TAT
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-F=+—H
ASSETS {3
Segment assets HHEE 428,563 2,996 313,415 308,885 1,053,859
Unallocated corporate assets APBAREE 5,615
Total assets BEHEE 1,059,474
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities NEEE 66,157 71 - - 66,228
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAEARIBE 1319
Total liabilities BEES 67,547
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and REEDHRANDESEHERME -

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other s MBEEADEELENE  HWE -
than property, plant and equipment, intangible asset, WMERZE BREE - & THEME
certain other receivables and certain bank balances and WERIE DA S B FIRITAE 88 IR R BRAD
cash; and 54

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e MAEBBEHSIEERESE HET
than certain other payables and accruals, certain interest HMENRIEREFER &TEN
payable and tax payable. B R BN BIARRSD

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2014

9.

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions to available-for-sale
financial assets

Reversal of impairment loss on loan
and interest receivables

Interest income from loan receivables

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available- for-sale financial assets

Foreign exchange loss

Interest expenses on borrowings

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not
included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible asset
Foreign exchange loss
Bank interest income

9. AHWEHR®E
Hibp &R

INANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_F-NF+-A=1—HILFE

Money Consultancy

lending
f&

HK$'000

TiER

FIAGHED BRI B RS
NHEEZER:

BMAHHESREE
EREHRASREBRRE

FEUERZMBHA
REKA
HENHHESHEAE
g
HAEERCRERR

AR R R ERE

AR ESREERT
REBR

EXER
EEZMER

THRTREERRE
REELEIIAGTE
e ENREER

NHEECEE:
0% BERZGENE
RENE  BERR
REEVAE
EXER
RITMBBA
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Securities

services investments

BHRE
HK$'000
TEL

#5RE
HK$'000
TR

Forestry

business Unallocated

AMER ROE

HK$'000  HK$'000
THEL TEx

Total
@5t
HK$'000
TEx



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions to available-for-sale
financial assets

Gain on disposal of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit o loss

Change in fair value of convertible
instruments designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment loss on loan
and interest receivables

Interest income from loan receivables

Interest income from convertible
instruments

Dividend income

Foreign exchange loss

Interest expenses on borrowings

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not
included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Interest expenses on note payable
Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain
Bank interest income

SIAGTED BRI R
NHEEZER:

BMAHHESREE

HETRRIA(RES
BRTEEBRRIIR
SREE) i

TRRTA(BEARATE
BRBRIIR EREE)
ZAVHEED

FUER LM EHE
BiERE

FEMET 2 FEHRA

ARRTAZHBHRA

BBMA
BB
BEZHBRAX

THRTBLERRERY
Y& A ED DT
IBEINHEECER:

ERREHERY
nx BELRRERE

RENE  MELR
I 5 g
RITHMBBA

il

Money Consultancy

lending
B8

HK$'000
7L

(5,000)
(19,955)

services
AR
HK$'000
7

nﬂ'\

BB RAM

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—T—

HER (&)
HipnEER (&)
HE—T—

Securities
investments

27
HKS! OOO
TEL

139,781

(27,347)

(35,491)

(6,315)
(9,076)

=F+ZAH=

Forestry

business
WIER
HK$'000

T

MEF—A=+—HILFE

T—HIEFE

Unallocated
ROR
HK$'000
A

- 139,781

- (27,347)

- (35,491)

- (5,000)
- (19,955)

- (6,315)
- (9,076)
- 1,552
- 1,130

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\VT\

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

S

9.

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the
Independent State of Papua New Guinea (the “PNG").

The geographical information about the Group's revenue
from external customers is presented based on the location
of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets, excluded those financial instruments, is based on the
location of the assets.

Revenue from

external customers

DEER (@)

i & & R
AEAREBREAEHENTBIE (B
FrEE R AL VTS | ) AT TS o

BRAKERAINREP RS 2B ER D
WEEMEWRY) c AREIFRBEEEHR
(TEEZEERMTR) HNEEMEL AR
B§ o

Non-current assets

REMREFE 2R FRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-E — =% —=E=—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET
Hong Kong BB 65,165 29,693 1,721 1,394
PNG Efmgr gt man - - 239,221 306,261
65,165 29,693 240,942 307,655

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBXEEFZER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as
follows:

RIEREFEEASBENRBER10% 2 EP
Yzsan T

2014
—E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Customer A (Revenue from money lending) EPR(EaKE) 20,005  N/A FiEF*
Customer B (Revenue from money lending) BP 7 (BaKE) 10,995 N/A @A+
Customer C (Revenue from money lending) ZER(EEWES 10,260 7,559
Customer D (Revenue from money lending) 2ET (EEZE) 8,267 N/A g *
Customer E (Revenue from money lending) BRI (BEWKE) N/A REF* 4,195
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * BRI (5 AN E E AU ZSFBi1E8 10% ©

revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @E KA

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Interest on: UTEBZFE
— note payable — ENERE - 96

Interest on (included in cost of sales): ATNEIBZFE
(BT ASHERA) -
— borrowings wholly repayable — AR —FAZBEREZ
within one year EBE 926 1,130
926 1,226
11. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 1. Httg A R W

2014 2013
—F-mFE  —T=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Bank interest income SRITABULA 2 2
Interest income from convertible instruments Al T A 2 R B U A - 6,315
Dividend income BB A 19,397 9,076
Others Ef 4 -
19,403 15,393

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\VT\

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

S

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FENEH
—REER

Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Current year

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No tax is payable on the profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 arising in Hong Kong since the assessable
profit was wholly absorbed by the tax losses brought forward.

No provision for People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
corporate income tax has been made during the year as the
subsidiaries operated in the PRC had no assessable profit for
the year (2013: Nil).

No provision for PNG profit tax has been made during the
year as the subsidiaries operated in PNG had no assessable
profit for the year (2013: Nil).
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12. FISHAX

2014 2013
—E-NF

—E—=F
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FET

6,899 -

IS MEMWMEFZ%JE%Mmﬂ
¥ 165%tE

R ERT R T A& IBEE 280K -
WHEREE—_E—=F+_A=1+—81F
FENRBBELE ZEMEMFIE -

RRAEREARKME ([HE]) QL 2B

ﬁﬂ#imiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ WiWIﬁ%
FRMEMASHAREG( T —=F : 8) -

RN LM R # ARG LS 2 HE R RNE

WA EERTEN) - MFRNLEREA D
ENENEHARRB (T —=F &) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FiEHRAX @)
The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to FRNAEHRX B A B R TERTAT
the (loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement of (1) G M ENT -

profit or loss as follows:

2014
—E-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

(Loss) profit before tax FRBAT (&8 &F (20,022) 74,507

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% AR PSR 2 16.5%

(2013: 16.5%) ZT—=5F:165%)
HE BB (3,303) 12,294

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR AT 2 B 2

for tax purpose 14,517 2,306
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HZE R R UL A 7 Fiig g/ & (3,767) (12,911)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KM A] F0F &S =58

not recognised 2B E 34 85
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBEEREZBGTE 450 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABRERERTIEER

not recognised (856) (1,564)
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries EAE@_T%%IH—_H?%%ZW%

operating in other jurisdiction NATRBE 2 M & (176) (210)
Income tax expense s BB 6,899 -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RBEHR AEBEBEARAPAHIAEELD
losses of approximately HK$3,525,000 (2013: HK$5,985,000). 3,525,000/ L ( = & — = 4 : 5,985,000
Details of deferred tax were set out in Note 29. TT) o RIERR A BT 29

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\VT\

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

B=
13.

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Other service

Total auditor’s remuneration

Directors’ emoluments

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Total staff costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange loss

Minimum lease payment under operating
lease in respect of land and buildings
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13. FR(BR)&EF

FRERE) BN LG
AT EBREES

AT &
— ZHR
— HARH

BB BN & 42 RR

R kn
BIRA(TBREZEHE)
—¥e  TERHEMERN
— RRB A B R

BTIRARE(TEEEEHE)

LEN Y&
0y ai= Pt
T RIETFLE
HEMEERIE

RiiTE

SHEETZ

2014
—E-NF

HK$'000
FET

2013

—E—=F

HK$'000
TR

972 940
200 340
1,172 1,280
480 1,358
8,468 8,330
487 382
8,955 8,712
932 1,210
1,307 1,541
2,250 1,714




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Fl

14. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 14.
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2013:
ten) Directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

NANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

ESERITHARME

ENSENTNG(ZE—=F: +R)&ES
ZaZMEMT

BE—_F-mFE+-A=1—HILFE

Salaries, Retirement
wages and benefit

other scheme

Fees benefits contribution Total
2 I8 RAREF
e REMEF B (A8 @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THRT THET
Executive directors: HiTESE
Ms. Jia Hui EEL+ = = = =
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu BERLE - - - -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren Bk = = = =
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REELE - = = =
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =ML 240 - - 240
Mr. Zheng Zhen® st 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Sze Kai® ERELES 106 - - 106
Mr. Lau Yiu Tung® Bl by 14 = = 14
480 - - 480

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-—NME+-A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 14. EERTHRARNE @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HBE_F-—=#F1+-A=1+—HIFE
Salaries, Retirement
wages and benefit
other scheme
Fees benefits  contribution Total
e IA RIKTER
e  REMER SHEIER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAET FAT
Executive directors: HITES
Ms. Jia Hui EExt - - - -
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu BERESE - - - -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B—Ek4E - - - -
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REERSE - - - -
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai REVETHE 782 - - 782
Non-executive director: FHITEF
Mr. Chan Kin Sang? BRif A 2 160 - - 160
Independent non-executive BUHHTESE -
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung mERLE 180 - - 180
Mr. Zheng Zhen? BR g S 3 77 _ _ 77
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen' BRITAEE 39 - - 39
Mr. Wong Sze Kai® BERELES 120 - - 120
1,358 - - 1,358
! Resigned on 29 April 2013 L RZBE—=FMA =+ BEHIT
2 Resigned on 30 April 2013 2 RZZE—=FMA=+THEE
3 Appointed on 10 May 2013 3 RZZE—=FRATBEEZT
4 Resigned on 16 July 2013 4 RZZB—=Ft A+ HET
s Resigned on 12 November 2014 s RZZE-—mFE+—A+ZHEHE
6 Appointed on 18 November 2014 and resigned on 27 February 2015 6 RZE—NF+—A+ N \BEZERNR T —
FZAZTHHEHE
Apart from the Directors, the Group has not classified any BRESI AEERBE_ZT—OFR=
other person as a chief executive during the years ended 31 —=ZF+ZA=+— Elﬂzirlﬁﬂﬂfﬂﬁ
December 2014 and 2013. No Directors waived any WAL BRITRAE - RMEFEHER
emoluments in both years. REMEEHS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none (2013: one) was Director whose emolument is
included in the disclosures in Note 14. The emoluments of
the remaining five (2013: four) highest paid individuals were

as follows:

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE—_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
15. EE<
AEBREBESHFA+H  BL(ZE—=

F:—R)AREE EMESRME14HEE -
BTAE(CE—=F :MA)BRoaHALZ
BemT

2014 2013

—ZE—MmF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FART FiHt

Salaries, wages and other benefits %ﬁ’i\ TE&NEMIEF 4,106 4,171
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIEFET B 82 60
4,188 4,231

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEZME N FLATEHR

Number of individuals

AB
2014
—ZE—-NF
Within Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000% 7T 4 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T 1 2
During the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no RBE-ZZTZ—NFER-_ZT—=%+2A

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).

=t- EIJJ:Eﬁ1I¢F£I*J $%@$ﬁ%,ﬂ¥iﬁﬂ£%
RRFALIREEINME  ERMAKRSE
B AAAR KB IR 2 SRENS A R B (E -

16. RE
BE_Z-NE+_A=+—BLFEAYL
RN RERRNBE - BWEHRARIR

BB EARE (2T —=F : §) -

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

17. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

. BR(ER) BA
AR FERE AR SREAR RS (FR) B

MIMRE N O BURRTH

2014
—E-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic
and diluted (loss) earnings per share

REsTEBIRELR LS
(Es18) BF 2 (E518) & F| (26,008) 75,597

2014
—Z2-nmE

‘000
T

Number of shares BHEAE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted (loss) earnings per share FHE

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options because the exercise price of those share options was
higher than the average market price of shares for the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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REstEBIREL LS
(E518) BF 2 Em I hnsE

2,782,102 1,250,456

AREE-T—UF+_A=+—HILFE
TEARRNE Z W ARITERRE S ER TR
BRL  BETESREEERSTERS
RABE AR HE T T T(F o

HREE—T—=F+_A=t—HILFE
ARBZ HARITEREBRETEERRIRN F
BTE - METESREE (B1R) BN E
BRREABRECETE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BERFZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor

improvement equipment vehicles Total

GR - £8
HEWELE ET AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT THT

cosT AR

At 1 January 2013 R=FE—=%—A-H 2,500 646 778 3,924
Additions NE - 29 - 29
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=F+-A=+—H 2,500 675 778 3,953
Additions NE - 65 - 65
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=+—H 2,500 740 778 4,018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  ZiigE

At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—H—H (787) (484) (78) (1,349)

Provided for the year ENER (1,000) (55) (155) (1,210)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZA=1—H (1,787) (539) (233) (2,559)

Provided for the year FREHE (713) (63) (156) (932)

At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+=A=+—H (2,500) (602) (389) (3,491)

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2014 R-B-mE+=-A=+—-A - 138 389 527

At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=%+-A=1+—H 713 136 545 1,394

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated ME - BELRREINERAEGETE

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their BEFAEATFHER A B EHRRER

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: R

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of expected HEMERE T8 HR AT {50 AR 4 Hp £
useful life and period of the lease HEFH REE

Furniture, fittings and ~ 20% R HBREE  20%

equipment
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.

re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

#BE—
19.

T-OFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE
GOODWILL

19. BHE

HK$'000
TAT

cosT A
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and N-_FE—=%—H—QH —ZT—=%
31 December 2014 +-A=+—HE=ZZE—NE
f=—B=4—§ 306,019
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RiHRE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and N_E—=%F—H—H8 —T—=%

1 January 2014 ToA=t—BRk=Z2-WF—-A—H -
Impairment loss recognised B ERIRERE 67,019
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+=-F=+—H 67,019
CARRYING VALUE BRTEE
At 31 December 2014 R-E—-NE+=-B=+—H 239,000
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 306,019

The goodwill was arisen from the acquisition of 30% equity
interest of Profit Grand Group (the “Acquisition”). Profit
Grand Group has been granted the right to operate sawmills,
harvest trees and sell logs, in the forest located in PNG with
ground area of approximately 65,800 hectares (the "Project
Area”).

Goodwill was allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit
identified according to the operating segment. The goodwill
as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 was
attributable to the cash-generating unit that comprises the
forestry business segment.

The recoverable amount of the forestry business segment
cash-generating unit was based on value in use and was
determined with reference to the valuation report issued by
Roma Appraisals (the “Valuation Report”).
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& U i Profit Grand 5= B 2 30% % # (I Y i
FI8 ) MELEE ° Profit Grand & B E %
FRMAEEMDFHEANTIEANTDEL
65800 R E([THE #E |) 2 ML EFE AR
R AR SHERA o

BEDEERBELED BN 2 AEERS
ELEB R _ZE-WF+_A=t—8BEK
“E-=F+_A=t+—RZBEDHREHA
RRME D B2 R B EEEM -

xﬂiﬁiﬁk“*ﬁziﬁif* HEEAz AJRE SRR
TiREREERE  UK2EESFFGHED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash
flows generated from the continuing use of the cash-
generating unit. The calculation of the value in use was based
on the following key assumptions:

° Cash flows were projected based on financial budget
approved by management covering a 26-year (2013: 28-
year) period.

° Revenue was projected based on management's
expectations for market development and the
harvesting plan.

o Timber product average domestic price growth at 4.98%
(2013: 5.66%) per annum and average export price
growth at 2.48% (2013: 3.01%) per annum.

. Up to an estimated growth rate of 124% (2013: 123%)
revenue generated from reforestation.

. A pre-tax discount rate of 21.58% (2013: 16.33%) based
on the data and factors relevant to the economy in
PNG, the forest industry, and the timber products in the
PNG.

° All relevant legal approvals and business certificates or
licenses to operate the business in the localities in which
the Group operates or intends to operate would be
officially obtained and renewed upon expiry.

Pursuant to the Valuation Report, the recoverable amount of
the forestry business segment as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$239,000,000 and an impairment loss of
approximately HK$67,019,000 (2013: Nil) has been recognised
in respect of the goodwill to the extent that the carrying
amount exceeded its recoverable amount based on the best
estimate by the Directors with reference to the Valuation
Report.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

19. B8 ®)

FREEDEBUNRRAREERRSES
BT 2 KRR RREE - A EE TN
TEEBBHE

e RemBNERERBEHEZMBREERE
A RE26F (ZF—=F: Z+N\
F)HE -

o WENHREEEHMISERLREKE
B 2 EHELTER -

s AMERZFHEATSERZFY
£498% (= —=4 :566%) " MF
B OERAZEFER248%(ZF
— =% :3.01%) °

. Eﬁﬁﬁ%%iw s 2 fhEHIg R R
% 124% (—ZZFE—=%F : 123%) °
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B=
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—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSET

COST AR
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014
Acquisition through acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 36)

At 31 December 2014

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014

RETRE

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2014

SREE

At 31 December 2013 N_ET—

The licence represents the licence plate which enable the
vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both PRC and
Hong Kong. The licence is renewable every year at minimal
cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group would
renew the licence continuously and has the ability to do so.

As a result, the licence is considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to generate economic benefit to the Group
indefinitely. The licence will not be amortised until its useful
life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LOGGING
CONCESSION

On 30 May 2011, I-Sky Natural has entered into a project
agreement with Vabari Development Corporation Limited (the
“Landowners”) for a forest development project in which
forest logs will be harvested for the purposes of sale and
export and other related activities incidental to and arising
out of the project in the Project Area. Pursuant to the project
agreement, |-Sky Natural could enjoy the logging concession
from the Landowners for a term of 99 years. |-Sky Natural shall
pay the Landowners required premiums, royalties and levies
and pay to the Landowners 3% share of its annual net profit
before tax, from all agricultural projects I-Sky Natural
undertakes within the Project Area. The balance represented
a non-refundable deposit of approximately HK$221,000
(equivalent to PGK75,000) (2013: HK$242,000 (equivalent to
PGK75,000)) for acquisition of logging concession had been
paid by the I-Sky Natural to the Landowners during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

On 26 June 2012 and 4 September 2012, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement and supplemental
subscription agreement, with China Environmental Energy
Investment Limited (“China Environmental”), whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange, in subscribing convertible
bonds, with total principal amount of HK$95,000,000 with
interest of 8% per annum, issued by China Environmental at
the subscription price of HK$95,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”). The subscription was completed and the
Convertible Bonds were issued to the Company on 12
October 2012. The Convertible Bonds can be converted into
new ordinary shares of China Environmental, limited to 29.9%
of the issued share capital of China Environmental, at any
time within a period of eighteen months following the date of
issue at a conversion price of HK$0.592 per share (adjusted to
HK$0.148 per share with effect from 18 July 2013 due to the
share subdivision of China Environmental). The Company has
not converted any Convertible Bonds into new ordinary share
of the China Environmental during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

21.

22.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

WMERAREGHEZRE

MRZE——FHH="TH - I-Sky Natural &2
Vabari Development Corporation Limited
(MZFx Dt —BENIE B SERKMAMHEE
K h RIA KR ETTH IR B HERE B) 2 AR F
HIARFRAR WhaE - IRIBE B W& » 1-Sky
Natural f Z B E TR B 2 K KFEFHE - R
AL+ L4 o I-Sky Natural #7125 £ 32 - B
FfE  FIEECHAEREE  UWRhAERE
S 5 1-Sky Natural & F (T8 B & E NETH
FrERRIBBFSBRIATALN 3% i ehts
I-Sky Natural R Bl &2 = F — — F + = A
=+ —RIFFERBGEARIEREEX
2 A AR Bl 2 & £9221,00078 7T (48 8 R
75,000 & 4%) (ZZ—=4F : 242,000 7T (18
EH 75000 E49)) °
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CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, fair value gain on
the Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$35,491,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

On 12 October 2012, the Group has entered into a call option
deed with an independent third party (the “Call Option
Holder") in granting a call option (the “Call Option”) for the
Call Option Holder to purchase up to HK$60,000,000 principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds at the exercise price of
120% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The
maturity date of the Call Option was three business days prior
to the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fair value of
the Call Option has been estimated by Roma Appraisals using
Black-Scholes option pricing model. However, as the fair
values were minimal, the Directors considered that no such
financial instrument should be recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Call Option
Holder fully exercised the Call Option to purchase up to
HK$60,000,000 principal amount of the Convertible Bonds at
the exercise price of 120% of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds at a total consideration of HK$72,000,000
in cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

22. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED 22. TR TE(BEARAFEEB

AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE BREVEREZEMERE) B
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
On 5 November 2013, the Company entered into a placing N-E—=F+—AFH  "ARIFIYHE
agreement to place the Convertible Bonds with the principal ek - ABLE A& %8 & 35,000,000 78 7T 2 A
amount of HK$35,000,000 (the “Remaining Convertible MEEEE (TR EsE]) R-ZTE—=
Bonds"”). On 20 December 2013, the Remaining Convertible FE+-A=-1+H  #a N BRESSKINE
Bonds have been successfully placed to an independent third EFT—ZBEBITE=ZHF KREBEAEAH S
party at the consideration of HK$98,000,000 in cash with 98,000,000 7T » 32 Z B AN 4] %% 2,450,000 78
transaction cost of approximately HK$2,450,000. IT °
All the Convertible Bonds have been disposed of through the BE_ZE—=%+—_A=+—RHIFFE
exercise of option and placing in which the net gain of BOREESD B RITHFERERIRE L
approximately HK$27,347,000 was recognised in profit or loss € I 2 R IB RS MR A F 5B 49 27,347,000
during the year ended 31 December 2013. BT ©
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 23. AHESREE
2014 2013
—E—F ZE—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF FET T
Listed investments EHERE
— Equity securities listed in HongKong ~ —R&E LM Z
hENCES (a) 707,503 174,165
Unlisted investments ELETIRE
— Redeemable convertible preference — A& O] AT R
shares EER (b) 90,000 90,000

797,503 264,165

RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

Z-HE+ZA=+—RALFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there had been significant increase
in the market value of certain equity investments with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$680,303,000 (2013: HK$134,565,000). Fair value
gain of approximately HK$531,502,000 (2013: HK$28,462,000) had been
recognised in other comprehensive income during the year ended 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, there had been a significant decline in the
market value of certain equity investments with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$27,200,000 (2013: HK$39,600,000). The Directors
consider that such a decline indicates that the listed equity investment
has been impaired and an impairment loss of approximately
HK$14,523,000 (2013: Nil) had been reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit and loss during the year ended 31
December 2014.

On 11 October 2012, Perpetual Master Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the subscription agreement
with Million Wealth, which is engaged in money lending business, in
subscribing 90 redeemable convertible preference shares of
HK$1,000,000 each from Million Wealth. The subscription was
completed on 30 November 2012.

The Directors consider that the Group has neither control nor significant
influence over Million Wealth as they have not actively participated in
the operation and policy-making process of Million Wealth. Therefore,
the investment in the redeemable convertible preference shares is
treated as available-for-sale financial asset as a long term investment,
and measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Directors consider that there

is no impairment is considered necessary at 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 24. EREREFE
2014 2013
—E-mE  —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables BRI E R EFE 422,568 261,490
Less: Accumulated impairment loss B REDRERE (30,984) (39,060)
391,584 222,430
All the loan and interest receivables are denominated in HK$. A ERWE R MR BB ABITTEHE -
The term of loans entered with customers ranges within one /\@ﬁ%TjZE%i%ﬁ%—iW o BE
year. And after monitoring assessment and further NETERFHRE—SERI>ME BT
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors, certain loans have ,\75/\3%& FRRERNZHR—F - AR
been further extended for not more than one year. All loan EREMEBAETE - EWERZETE
and interest receivables are denominated in HK$. The loan FFENFI0EEUE(ZZE—=F:10F
receivables carry fixed interest rates ranging from 10% to 24% F48E) - RIBER AR BHALFBE
(2013: 10% to 48%) per annum. An aging analysis of the loan EREBORIEE - EWREZ R T ERIRE
and interest receivables net of accumulated impairment loss KNG ZHREEEZERBTIT ¢

at the end of the reporting period, based on the loan
agreement commencement date and the date of interest

incurred respectively, is as follows:

2014 2013

—E—mE —EF-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0-30 days 0-30H 63,488 150,933
31-90 days 31-90H 83,246 7,592
91-180 days 91-180 H 44,567 5,077
181-365 days 181-365 H 69,287 843
Over 365 days 365 B 130,996 57,985
391,584 222,430

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-T-WEt-A=t+—AIEE

24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)  24. FEWE R R & (&)

Set out below is an analysis of loan and interest receivables

that are past due but not impaired:

31-90 days 31-90H
91-180 days 91-180 H
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 365 days 365 BA

Note: As at 31 December 2014, the amounts which are past due but not
impaired amounting to approximately HK$120,877,000 were subject to
collateral (2013: Nil).

The movements in accumulated impairment loss of loan and

interest receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—HA—H
Reversal of impairment loss B & 18 Bl
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H

Included in the above accumulated impairment loss at 31
December 2014 was individually impaired loan and interest
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$30,986,000 (2013: HK$39,064,000) before impairment
which have been in financial difficulties.

As at 31 December 2014, loan and interest receivables
amounting to approximately HK$253,647,000 (2013:
HK$147,460,000) were subject to collateral for listed shares
with a fair value of approximately HK$303,545,000 (2013:
HK$215,877,000).
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2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
67,597 15,682
47,278 -
6,000 -

2 4

120,877 15,686

Mt R=ZZT—WFE+-_A=+—8 CHHEERHE
Z 5RIE49120,877,0008 LB FIF(ZT— =4 :
) -
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2014 2013
—EF-mFE  —F=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET
39,060 44,060
(8,076) (5,000)
30,984 39,060

FR—E-mE+—_A=+—RHBZ 2K
BB IR AN BN E# 2 @5 B R E R
BEREAE ERBEAMZEBRENA
30,986,000 7T (=& — =4 : 39,064,000/%
JTL) °

R—ZE-—MNMFEF+_A=+—80" &
253,647,000 7L (= ZF — = 4 : 147,460,000
BIL)ZEREREFMEARTFEYD
303,545,000 70 ( —Z — =4 : 215,877,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEUNBR R R Hfth PE W RRIE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade receivables FEUBRZX 166 511
Less: Accumulated impairment loss W REDREEE (60) -
106 511
Prepayments TartFRIE 3,340 4,984
Other receivables (Note) E e IAE (Y E) 20,743 10,972
24,083 15,956
Total trade and other receivables E LK BR 38 K% oA E Lk
HIREEE 24,189 16,467
Note: As at 31 December 2014, included in other receivables are interest Bt : RZE—WFE+-A=+—0  HEKRIER
receivables of HK$Nil (2013: HK$537,000) from the convertible EREPBEIRRATFITAIRBRTAZERAES
instruments issued by China Environmental. BT (ZZ—=4% : 537,000/&7T) °
As at 31 December 2014, included in other receivables are dividend RZZ—NF+=A=+—8  HtEKKES
receivables amounting to approximately HK$19,825,000 (2013: %E’ﬁ—ﬂﬁ@T?‘@Hﬁ%?ﬁﬂﬁZ&ﬁZﬁEWﬂﬁ%%’]
HK$9,841,000) regarding the investment in redeemable convertible 19,825,000 7T (ZZ—=% : 9,841,000/ 7T) °

preference shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

l\VT\

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in accumulated impairment loss of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January mn—HA—H
Impairment loss recognised BRI AR
At 31 December R+-—A=+—~H

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group allowed a
credit period in the range from 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90
days) to its debtors. An aging analysis of the trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
net of accumulated impairment loss recognised, is as follows:

Within 90 days 90 H A

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

25. B AR

Hfth B W =R IE (48)
E%%mZ%ﬁﬂﬁ%?”@@T

2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
60 -

60 -

HE-_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HILEFE &
EERAEBEFAREN TFIOENVH(=ZE
—=F :302E90R)ZZEH - REEER
HstE - BEURERZRNRESRRNGERRER
sHREEBEZBREOTIT

2014
—E-NF

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FHTT

HK$'000
TER

106 511

I 418 51| ok B8 BE A 4R A R (B 2 B U BR FRBR iR
DT

2014
—E-NF

HK$'000
TER

Neither past due nor impaired REH R ARBE
There was no trade receivable balance as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 which was past due for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss at the end of both reporting
periods.

In determining the recoverability of a trade or other
receivable, the Group considers any change in credit quality
of the trade and other receivables from the date credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. Other than the
amount due from an overdue debtor which has been fully
impaired for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
considered that there is no further impairment loss should be
provided for those debtors of the Group with good
settlement history. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.5% (2013: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The Group's bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are as follows:

RMB AR

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

26. RITEHREERS
BHE-_Z-—WF+-A=+—HIFE R
TREBENTF0NEEISE(ZT— =4
0.01EZE05[F) 2 RITMBFREEE -

RITARRTF BRI B B R A8k 2 7] 58
RIT °

7 S [ AR o R B S DA SN S B
B2PTEARAEMT

2014 2013
—E=—MmE —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT

456 426

27. it BN RERERTE R

2014 2013
=EF-mFE —F=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Other payables E At T RIE 42 4
Accrued expenses FEETRIZ 3,578 1,312
Receipt in advance TEWRIE 64 64
3,684 1,417
BORROWINGS 28. &
2014 2013
=F-mE  —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Current — on demand or within one year BNHl — R Ekk—F R
Other borrowings — unsecured EmEE — &R = 65,000

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

B=
28.

29.

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Other borrowings represented borrowings from an
independent third party.

Maturity

date
FEA

Fixed rate unsecured other borrowings
denominated in HK$:

HtEsSEERABTEE -

HK$ loan of HK$65,000,000 26 April 2014

7 7T B 7£65,000,000 7 7T —ZT—OF
MA—+,x8

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the interest
expense of approximately HK$926,000 (2013: HK$1,130,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as cost of sales.

DEFERRED TAXATION

No deferred tax asset attributable to the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses of the Group have been
recognised for both years as it is uncertain that there will be
sufficient future profits available to utilise the balances. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had unexpired
estimated tax losses available for off-setting future taxable
profits and deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$3,525,000 (2013: HK$5,985,000) and
HK$79,212,000 (2013: HK$79,006,000) respectively.
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Carrying amounts

IRE{E

Effective
interest rate

BERFI=

==
B8

2014 2013
—E-—MF —F—=

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET T

10% = 65,000
BHE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—BILFE 7
B OB & #9926,0008 T( — & — = F:
1,130,000 70) DB FER A ERUR -
EAEB I
MREXIEESE G L HAIEF A #

BABRSH a&wwrmwwm&
B Al N SR R IEEBERE

TRIBEE - RN - ZIS;%lﬁﬂ;naE@J,H;ﬁ
2 hET BB R BRI 2 549 3,525,000
Bor( = FT — = 4 5985000 5t ) &
79,212,000/ 7L( ZF— =4 : 79,006,000/ 7T )
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

30. &

Number of

Par value shares Amount

HiE BROHE £

HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
i T b7t

Authorised:
At 1 January 2013

Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each

Share consolidation (Note a)
Capital reduction (Note b)
Capital reorganisation (Note b)

At 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2013

Share consolidation (Note a)
Capital reduction (Note b)
Issue of right shares (Note ¢)
Issue of bonus shares (Note ¢)

At 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014

EE

R-ZE—=F—F—H
SIREE0.0878 T2 LB
W& 0F (HriEa)

R AR (H7aEb)

WA E A (Hiath)

R-E-=%+-A=+—-8HK
—E-ME+ZA=+—H

BRTRERE:
RZE—=F—H—H
BRin &bt (Hfita)

B AR (H7aEb)
BITHERR ) (A5t c)
BITHIR (HiEc)

R-E-=f+-A=+-8HK
—E-ME+=-A=+-H

0.08 5,000,000 400,000

N/A TEA (3,750,000) -
0.001 - (398,750)

0.001 398,750,000 398,750
0.001 400,000,000 400,000

0.08 2,225,682 178,054

N/A TE R (1,669.262) -
0.001 - (177,498)

0.001 1,112,841 1,113

0.001 1,112,841 1,113
0.001 2,782,102 2,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR a B IE Rk M A

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-T-ME+-A=+—AILER
30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 August
2013, a share consolidation on the basis that every 4 issued and
unissued shares with the par value of HK$0.08 each in the share capital
of the Company had been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with
the par value of HK$0.32 each with effective from 15 August 2013. Prior
to the date of share consolidation, there were 2,225,682,121 issued
shares, after the share consolidation, the number of issued shares
changed to 556,420,530.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 14 August 2013, the Company's issued share
capital was reduced by cancelling the issued and unissued share capital
to the extent of HK$0.319 each such that the par value of the issued and
unissued share capital was reduced from HK$0.32 to HK$0.001 each, as
a result, approximately HK$177,498,000 was credited to the contributed
surplus of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 14 August 2013, the Company’s authorised
share capital was increased from HK$1,250,000 divided into
1,250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to HK$400,000,000
divided into 400,000,000,000 new shares by creation of 398,750,000,000

new shares.

On 4 October 2013, the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) approved by way of poll the rights issue on the basis of
2 rights shares for every 1 share held on the record date of 15 October
2013 at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per rights share with bonus issue
on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 rights share taken up under the
right issue. The rights issue with the bonus issue became unconditional
on 4 November 2013. 1,112,841,060 rights shares and 1,112,841,060
bonus shares with the par value of HK$0.001 each were allotted and
issued on 4 November 2013 and net proceeds of approximately
HK$197,346,000 were raised. Details of the rights issue and the bonus
issue were set out in the circular of the Company dated 16 September
2013.

All the shares which were issued during the year ended 31

December 2013 rank pari passu with the then existing shares

in all respects.

Paciy c Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

30. A (#)
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BUARREBHA—ZT—=F \B+HEZAE
e RARBIRAS G4REREEO0.085
T2 BBEITRARETROEHATREEBE0IE
ARG 2 EEETRGAM AT —=
FENA+RABREY - RERHDEHEHRT 2B 3
TR B 52,225,682,121 % » AN & HF&
81| 4 556,420,530 fi% °

BER-F—=F B THARITZARFRR
FRIRGMEBFIIRER  EBEHOETR
REBEITRAFR0NETHIR AR BB BEITR
T MLBEFTRARBETRAZEMBEHATRO032
BILHIRZEER0.0018 T - EHARREHREH
#EHR49177,498,000 7 7T ©

RERZT—=FNATHBRTZEAAFRE
HAXEHMBASIRER BBER
398,750,000,000 B # A& 15 + AR Al Z A ERRA
£ 1,250,000 7T (9 % 1,250,000,000 % £ A% T (&
0.001 7% 7T 2 & 38 A% ) % Z= 400,000,000 7T (5 A
400,000,000,000 &7 R% 1) °

R-Z—=F+AMB  AQRBRE(ER]) A
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AERR ) AT FI B 1T (R BRIBER S EE — K
AR AR (D EEE — BRALAR) o AEAIFIZ TR = F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Statement of financial position information of the Company at

the end of reporting period is as follows:

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Other receivables and prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note)

Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Interest payable
Borrowings

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium
Available-for-sale financial assets

revaluation reserve

Share-based payment reserve
Contributed surplus
Accumulated losses

Total equity

31. AA T Z R RH*
ARBRBEPRR 2T ER R HRERER @0
T
2014 2013
—E—-mE —T—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et THT FHIT
EMBEE
b =Y S 138 850
REBRRZEE 33 = -
AHHESREE 600,200 100,120
600,338 100,970
mENVEE
H th B U RIR
NSELNE S 1,254 1,668
FEUR B B R R FUB
=) 711,148 740,744
AU Bl R IE 137 -
RITEBR MRS 4,967 40,511
717,506 782,923
mEIAE
Hh A FIE K
B E A 3,491 1,236
FEATFI B = 1,130
BE = 65,000
3,491 67,366
mENEEFE 714,015 715,557
BEAERRBAE 1,314,353 816,527
BRI
f& A 30 2,782 2,782
f& 1w (B 32 721,226 721,226
AHHESREE
EihFE 32 494,490 (18,278)
LARRAD B BN SR 32 1,367 1,367
BEHRS 32 277,102 277,102
RiTE1E 32 (182,614) (167,672)
B 1,314,353 816,527

Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Wit ZERBEREER  THERBREREE -
RV HRE R A PR ] % — AR AR R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-T-mE+=A=+—HILEE

32. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

32. RKATIRAE

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets  Share-based
Share  revaluation ~ payment Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses
e URHA
tHEE  HEMX
ROEE  EftRfk g BERR  ZHER &3t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR Thx ThT TR T TAL
At 1 January 2013 R=%-Z%-A-H 524993 - 1,367 100,717 (233,166) 393911
Profit for the year Epig| - - - - 65,494 65,494
Other comprehensive expense for the year EREMRERR
Items that may be subsequently reclassified o~ ZZHEH 782
profit or loss: BRZEE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AfHESHER
— Change in fair value —LTEEY - (18.278) - - - (18.278)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income FRRE(FEL) hakE
for the year - (18,278) - - 65,494 106
Capital reduction (Note 30b) TRARELE (B2 300) - - - 177498 - 177498
Issue of right shares (Note 30(c) BMRRRG (2 300) 199,199 - - - - 199,199
Right issues expenses HHERY (2.966) - - - - (2,960)
Issue of banus shares (Note 30(c)) BTk (WE300) - - - (1,113 - (1,113)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZETZA=1-H 721,26 (18,278) 1,367 217,102 (167,672) 813745
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - (14.942) (14,942)
Other comprehensive income for the year EREp2EkE
Items that may be subsequently reclassified o~ Z#HEFH 782
profit or loss: BRZEH
Available-for-sale financial assets: AfESHER
— Change in fair value —ATEEY - 498,245 - - - 498,45
— Reclassification adjustment — BN ENDERE
upon impairment - 14,523 - - - 14,523
Total comprehensive income (expenses) ErEENE(RR) 88
for the year - 512768 - - (14.942) 497826
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+=F=1+-H 721,226 494,490 1,367 277,102 (182,614) 1,311,571
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments, at cost
Less: Provision for impairment

BB RAM

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

nﬂ'\

33. RBLAIZRE

The Company
PN
2014

2013
—T—=4
HK$'000
FET

—g-mE
HK$'000
TR

FEEMRE - WA - -

W

BB

Details of all the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31

December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Place of
Class of incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries shares held establishment

Fris R AR

EMER S /AL 5

Direct subsidiaries:
ERMEATE
Best Harvest Asia Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands
("BVI")
EBETNERLA LRk AERRES
(#Brz#E))
Smart Source Corporation Ordinary shares Hong Kong ("HK")
Limited
KRERAT LER BBk
Joy Wealth Finance Limited ~ Ordinary shares HK
EREHHERLR EER R
Treasure Brand Limited Ordinary shares BVI
Bl EERIES
Century Praise Limited Ordinary shares BVI
LER EERIES
Alpha Riches Limited Ordinary shares BVI

il AERRES

Perpetual Master Ordinary shares BVI

TER AERRES

Create World Enterprises
Development Limited

Ordinary shares HK
B EE

Place of

operations

Bgwy

HK
Bt
HK
Bk
HK
B
HK
B
HK
B
HK
B

HK
B0

Particulars of
issued

share capital/
paid up
registered
capital
BRTRE/
MR
EARfE

USs1

(B

HK$1
AT

HKS1
1AL
US$1
127

USs1
127

Us$t
1%

Us$t
1%

HKS1
187

ARAR-_F—MOFER_FT—=F+_#
=t- EI%ﬁZFfrﬁIKﬁ% AIFFIBAT

Proportion of
Attributable equity
interest of the Group

voting power held by

the Group Principal activities

rEEEERE KEBAERARLA
2014 2013 2014 2013
“®-mE "% ZR-PF —T-=%

TERK

100% 100% 100% 100%  Securities trading
100% 100% 100% 100% #HHEE

100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
100% 100% 100% 100% REZR

100% 100% 100% 100%  Money lending
100% 100% 100% 100% A5

100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
100% 100% 100% 00% HERR

100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
100%. 100% 100% 100%  &&EER

100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive

100% 100% 100% 100% EEXH

100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
100% 100% 100% 00%  RARR

100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive

100% 100% 100% 0% EEEH

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

33. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. KRB AR 2RE (&)

Particulars of
issued
share capital/

Place of paid up Proportion of

Class of incorporation/ Place of registered Attributable equity voting power held by

Name of subsidiaries shares held establishment operations capital interest of the Group the Group Principal activities
BRIRE/
B
HEARER R 8 R SMEYL/ Rty SEeH ERGHE rEEEERE AREFERARLE  EEXE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mE “F-=F ‘

Indirect subsidiaries:

AENELR
BTN R ARE Ordinary shares PRC PRC HK$780,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive
BRAR! gl HE P 780,000 7 100% 100% 100% 100% EEEH
Pacific Vision Advisory Ordinary shares HK HK HKS$!1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Provision for corporate
Services Limited secretarial and
consultancy services
AEFARBERLA TER £k R 137 100% 100% 100% 100% RECEUER
HARH
Blooming Faith Development  Ordinary shares HK HK HKS$!1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited TER B B0 187 100% 100% 100% 0% EEEH
Profit Grand? Ordinary shares BVI BVI UsD170 30% 30% 51% 51%  Investment holding
LER EERNHE AERNAE 170%7T 30% 30% 51% 51%  REAER
-Sky Natural® Ordinary shares PNG PNG PKG100 30% 30% 51% 51%  Forestry business
gl ERERENE  EAZHEAE 10054 30% 30% 51% 51%  ARER
HongKong Chung Cheng Ordinary shares HK HK HK$100 100% - 100% - Inactive
Transport & Trading Limited®
FARIMEEERAR  LER EE £ 1007 100% - 100% - BB
! The company is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned ! FZRFAINEIEE (DA o
enterprise.
2 On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition. Profit Grand 2 RIZE-——_FOA+ A AEETKEES
Group is regarded as subsidiaries of the Group as the Group has control I8 © Profit Grand R B R ARNEBZHE AR -
over Profit Grand Group by the control over the majority composition of 1 Th B R AR £ B35 8 12 | Profit Grand ES & 2
the board of directors of Profit Grand and 51% of the total voting rights REBH K B K5 Profit Grand RE A & #1RE
in the general meetings of Profit Grand. 12 51% M £ %] Profit Grand 52 [ ©
3 The company was incorporated on 28 February 2003, in which the 3 FZRARZEE=F A+ N\BFEMKL - &
Group acquired 100% of its issued share capital at a consideration of EER-_ZT—NOF+—AZTN\BURESLD
approximately HK$1,194,000 on 28 November 2014 (Note 36). 1,194,000/8 T K B 100% B 31 TIR A (M 3£ 36) ©
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of RELE B FREMERE - SMEQH0E
the year or at any time during the year. EAIERE 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASES
The Group as a lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. At the end of the reporting

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1+—RLFE

34. &iE
Kems
EEBEBAEA
AEBERBEEHELHEEETHAE
X o R|EYR - AREREA AT HEHELE

period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments MEMmMAYNZ B SEREREETE AR
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HEANA :
2014 2013
—E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within one year —F R 2,957 1,299
In the second to fifth year inclusive —FEELF(BREEEMF) 1,962 -
4,919 1,299

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of 2
years (2013: 2.8 years).

HOEHERREE/ARI2F(ZF—=
28%F)  HINHESEETE -

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILTFE

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012 (the
"AGM"), the Shareholders duly approved the relevant
resolutions to adopt a new share option scheme (the “New
Share Option Scheme”) by authorising the Directors to allot
and issue up to the 10 percent of the issued share capital of
the Company under the New Share Option Scheme. The
Directors or an authorised committee were authorised, at
their/its absolute discretion, to grant options to any person,
subject to the selection criteria, being an employee, officer,
agent, consultant or representative of the Group, including
any executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide
incentives to the grantee to contribute to the Group and to
enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options
to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the Board,
who has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group. The subscription price will be a price determined by
the Board and at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Upon the completion of the Acquisition on 12 April 2012, an
option had been conditionally granted by the Company to
each of FEIBEII R T X (K E) 222 7 (China Longjiang
Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation) (“Longjiang
Forest Industry”) and Jia Run Investments Limited (“Jia Run”)
to subscribe for not more than 49,517,009 shares of the
Company after the proposed share consolidation became
effective on 20 March 2012 (equivalent to 6,189,626 shares of
the Company after the proposed share consolidation
becoming effective on 10 September 2012) (the “Longjiang
Option” and the “Agent Option” respectively). After the
rights issue during the year ended 31 December 2012, the
number of shares could be subscribed became 12,936,318 as
at 31 December 2012. After the share consolidation and the
right issue, became effective, the number of shares could be
subscribed became 6,287,049 as at 31 December 2014 and
2013. The Longjiang Option and Agent Option were granted
to Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run respectively for the
establishment of a strategic alliance between the Company
and Longjiang Forest Industry with respect to the
development and management of the forest acquired under
the Acquisition with the assistance of Jia Run as an agent. The
Agent Option was lapsed on 31 December 2012. No share
options had been exercised during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

*  For identification purpose only

35.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T-WNFT-A=+—HLFE

BT E e
MN_ZE——FA+ AR EEEE
RARDBIAFERETIHRATE(EE)EA
RIEIAMAIE]) REHREBRAA
(I8 BIEMERE AR - D BRETE
BR-E——F=- A TREEROHAMHE
1% 249,517,009 AN A B (FEE R =
T——FNATHEEROAEHESEZ
6,189,626 A A EIRKAD ) (2 Bl AT BT H#E ]
MIREEE) 2T ——F+ -4
“t+—BUHEFEERERE  RZT——F
TZAZT—AUHRBIBROEE A
12,936,318 & ° AR 10 & B K A% AE 7k g -
R-E—NMFEER-_ZET—=F+-"A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF+-_A=+—ALLFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. BRREFE(®)
The movements of the share options of the Company during RATEBREENEHNOT

the year are as follows:

2014 —E-mF

Outstanding at Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding at
1 January Granted  due to share due to Lapsed 31 December
Option type 2014 during 2014 consolidation* right issue*  during 2014 2014

RZE-m% RZE-m%
-B-B  R-E-RmE RRG4H RiERMm R-2-mE +-A=t-A
HEER MARTE B miEhERr fEHER KN HARTE

Other eligible persons

EfAERAL

— Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option 6,287,049 - N/A R ER NATER - 6,287,049
—EIRMIE LR

Weighted average exercise price HK$8 - N/A N/A - HK$8
IEFATEE AT - Wl ol - AT
2013 —E—=F

Outstanding at Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding at
1 January Granted  due to share due to Lapsed 31 December
Option type 2013 during 2013 consolidation* right issue*  during 2013 2013

R-Z-ZF RZB-ZF
-A-RB  R=R-=F BROAH Ritkm R-%-=Ff T-A=t-H
RS WA Ry medER frtiAR %% WA

Other eligible persons

EaERAT

— Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option 12,936,318 - (9,702,239 3,052.970 - 6,287,049
—EIRIE EIHE

Weighted average exercise price HKS2 - HKS8 HKS8 - HK$8
TSR QBT - 8ETL 8T - BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE_Z-WFT-A=+—RLFE

35. BRAERE (@)
ST ABRIERRE Y ST -

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

2014 2013
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Exercise price
~Z-MF
BRELAH FRAS iy (x: 3
Longjiang Option 12 April 2012 Upon the grant of Forestry For 1 year but no later than HK$8 HK$8*
Authority Clearance 31 December 2015
ETmE “E-FMATZA REERIE R BT AR —5 BRER-Z-1F | 8ER BT
tZA=1+-H

Following the share consolidation effective from 15 August 2013 and
rights issue effective from 4 November 2013, the exercise prices of share
options were adjusted from maximum of HK$2 and minimum of HK$2 to
maximum of HK$8 and minimum of HK$8. The number of share option

was also adjusted as a result of the share consolidation and rights issue.

Share-based payment expenses of HK$1,367,000 has been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012. It gave rise to a share-
based payment reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
these equity-settled share-based payment transactions. No
share-based payment expenses were recorded for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The fair values of Longjiang Option and Agent Option
determined at the date of grant using the Monte Carlo
simulation method were approximately HK$1,339,000 and
HK$28,000 respectively.

As the fair value of the services received could not be
estimated reliably by the Company, the fair value of service
received from Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run was
measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the
option granted.

* BIBROEHREBRA BN —E—=F\A+HHA
RZT—=F+—-AMAERE  BREZTE
ERHES2ETRRE2ETRAEEREETLR
RIK8E T - B REEE INE R & BF R AR
TR T2 -

LA RS 7 7 E 8 5 30 9 2 1,367,000 7T 2 71
ABE-_Z——#+-_A=+—HItFE>
RAERER  EMEA—BURGEERS
IS - WERZEMESE AR AER
MR GERTMAE BEZT—NOFR
—E-ZFE+-A=+—RHILFE  TER
SRR AR R

SRR BDARE T BT HIME S OIE B
R A B2 A FED R4 41,339,000
7T % 28,000 7T °

R PTUER S < A EE AR A A FA] 5
HfhET - BUR BRI ARM T E K = BT
Rz D HEZ2EMR L EE 2 2 FER
AT E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

B=
35.

36.

—E-ME+A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
values of share options at the grant date:

35.

Grant date FH A

Share price AP B

Initial exercise price 1T E(E
Expected option period e B A 1R e 28 A
Expected volatility TEERR B
Risk-free interest rate f L P ) 22

The Monte Carlo simulation method has been used in
computing the fair value of the share options based on the
Directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in fair value of the
Longjiang Option.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 28 November 2014, Create World Enterprises
Development Limited (“Create World”) and an independent
third party (the "Vendor”) entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell and
Create World agreed to purchase the entired equity interest
of HongKong Chung Cheng Transport & Trading Limited
("Chung Cheng") at the consideration of RMB950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,194,000). Upon
completion, Create World became the sole legal and
beneficial owner of the entired issued share capital of Chung
Cheng. The date of completion of the acquisition was 24
December 2014. Chung Cheng is mainly holding a licence
plate which enables the vehicle to travel and hang licence
plate in both PRC and Hong Kong. The acquisition had been
accounted for as acquisition of assets.
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BRESTE (@)
STEBREREL RS D
T H

N RS s 3l

Longjiang
Option

BETLHARE

12 April 2012
—F——F
mA+=H

HK$0.083 & 7T
HK$0.25 to
HK$0.5
0.258LE
0.5%7T

1.723 years 7F

205.924%
0.207%

E%Hﬂ%é’&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%#—?—F%E%ﬁiﬁ%%$
ZEEGBFAHESD - —JZ%%Z&@%?& s
BRI MBI M A THERE

EBWE-—RNEARWEEE

RZE—NWF+—H=Z+/\A " Create
World Enterprises Development Limited
([Create World) = — 2B £ =7 (&
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_T—WNE+_A=1+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 6. FRAWNBE—RHBMBARIWEBEE
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) (48)
ASSET ACQUIRED RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF RIWEBRREIAZCWBEE
ACQUISITION
HK$'000
T
Intangible asset (Note 20) | EE (Mit20) 1,194
Total consideration satisfied by: BRERNTHAERN :
HK$'000
FABT
Cash Re 1,194
Analysis of net cash outflow arising on the acquisition of asset HEWE—ENB AR WEEERELE 2R
through acquisition of a subsidiary: SMEFREDN
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration paid ERNBRESRE 1,194
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 37. BRIKBERIF IS
CONTRIBUTION
The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme AEBEEAEZ2ERBEEZINAEHIEATE
("MPF Scheme") for all of its employees in Hong Kong. The ST E([BEEE]) - BRESIENES
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund BRBRGIMERBE BRI MREIERES
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund TR RN - REEETEc BERAE
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF BErEE HRBE  EeH —BUXEAR
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds E o RBRBESFE R XEBRAEE
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule BEEASERFEAREERAZS% -
of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its Hong Kong employees HE-_Z—NFRA=T—RALXAEERE
each make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the BERBZHRERATR12508T B
employee’s income with the maximum contribution by each T-WERA—RENAET H15008 7T °
of the Group and the employees limited to HK$1,250 per AEBEGARESFEREZ E—BEABE
month up to 31 May 2014 and HK$1,500 per month since 1 FTEIEL PR R

June 2014. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

RV HEE R PR 2 v % — PUARAE IR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=)
4R

B PR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

B=
37.

38.

39.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
CONTRIBUTION (Continued)

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represent contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, contributions of the Group
under the MPF Scheme and the funds amounted to
approximately HK$487,000 (2013: HK$382,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 EARE A
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trend.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 20 January 2015, the Group entered into a fourth loan
agreement with an independent third party (the “Borrower”)
with whom the previous loan agreements were entered into
on 24 September 2014, 27 October 2014 and 19 November
2014 for loan which have not been due prior to the entering
of the fourth loan agreement, pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to provide a loan with principal amount of up to
HK$36,000,000 to the Borrower in accordance with the terms.
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2014
—E-NF

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FHIT

HK$’000
FET

480 1,358
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